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1 B E IT REMEMBERED that the above-entitled and

2 numbered matter came on regularly to be heard before the

3 Arizona Corporation Commission, in Hearing Room 1 of

4 said Commission, 1200 West Washington Street, Phoenix,

5 Arizona, commencing at 9:32 a.m. on the 24 th of

6 September, 2009.

7

8 BEFORE : TEENA I. WOLFE, Administrative Law Judge

9
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10

11 For the Arizona Corporation Commission Staff

12

13

By Mmes. Robin Mitchell and Ayes ha Vohra
Staff Attorneys, Legal Division
1200 West Washington Street
Phoenix, Arizona 85007
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15 For the Applicant:

16
and Robert Metli

17

18

SNELL & WILMER, L.L.P.
By Messrs. Jeffrey w. Crockett
One Arizona Center
400 East Van Buren
phoenix, Arizona 85004

19
For Swing First Golf, L.L.C.:

20

21
Suite 200-676
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CRAIG A. MARKS, .P.L.C.
By Mr. Craig A. Marks
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Phoenix, Arizona 85028
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1 ALJ WOLFE: Let:'s go on the record.

2 We are on the record, so if there are procedural

3 matters that you would like to discuss, please raise

4 them now. Mr. Marks.

5 MR I MARKS : Good morning, Your Honor. We had

6 And a s w e stated at

7

discussed on Monday Exhibit SF-32.

that time, or good Mr. Crockett stated I we intended to

8 have a discussion yesterday to try to narrow or,

9 possible I eliminate our differences with SF-32 I and we

10 have done so.

11

And we have a revised -- what I prefer to

do is just withdraw the previously -- the previous

12 document that was submitted but not admitted, and just

13 substitute this Exhibit SF-32 for that.

14 It is not a tremendous amount that's taken out I

15 but I think together, what, seven or eight paragraphs or

so from the entire document somewhere in that16 I

17 neighborhood.

18 ALJ WOLFE: That sounds reasonable to me.

19 Do you have anything to add, Mr. Crockett?

20 MR. CROCKETT: Your Honor, I would add that

21 Mr. Pozefsky has indicated that he would like to add

22 back some language in this portion of the transcript

23 There were a

24 One of

25

that is being offered as an exhibit.

couple of places that he proposed to do that.

them we don't have any objection to, the other we do

ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
www.az-reporting.com
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1 still have objection to, and would like to take that up

2 with Your Honor perhaps off the record, in light of the

3

4

f act that the transcript is still a confidential

document until it is admitted.

5 MR. MARKS: But for now, Your Honor, I would

6 like if we could, I think we have consensus on SF-32I I

7 if we could get that into the record and use that for

8 the baseline for further discussions I think that wouldI

9 be useful .

10 ALJ WOLFE: Is there any objection to that, Mr.

11 Crockett?

12 MR. CROCKETT : no, Your Honor, not to

13 substituting the revised SF-32.

14 ALJ WOLFE: Okay . If there is a stipulated

15

16

exhibit that the par ties would like to have admitted, I

will take that under consideration, if you could just

17 pass it out. And then if there is something else that

18

19

another par Ty wants to enter into the record, then we

can address that separately.

20 MR I MARKS : And, Your Honor, with that

21 understanding that this has been stipulated to, Swing

22 First Golf would move Exhibit SF-32.

23 ALJ WOLFE: Okay . It has been stipulated to.

24 assume there is no objection, Staff?

25 ms. MITCHELL: N o Your Honor.I

ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
www.az-reporting.com
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1 ALJ WOLFE: RUCO |

2 MR. POZEFSKY: No, Your Honor.

3 ALJ WOLFE: SF-32 is admitted, not through any

4 witness, but through stipulation.

5

6

And then, Mr. Pozefsky, if you would like to

move for admission of any other portion of the

7 transcript, you can do that through the witness of your

8 choice at the time you are asking questions.

9 MR. POZEFSKY: Thank you, Your Honor.

10 (Exhibit No. SF-32 was admitted into evidence.)

11 ALJ WOLFE: All right. Are there any other

12 procedural issues?

13 (No response.)

14 ALJ WOLFE: Mr. Marks, would you like to call

15 your witness.

16 MR I MARKS : Yes. Thank you, Your Honor. At

17 this time Swing First Golf, LLC calls Mr. David Ashton

18 to the stand.

19 (Whereupon David Ashton was duly sworn by the

20 Certified Repot tee.)

21 ALJ WOLFE: Good morning. Now you have been

22 sworn twice.

23 THE WITNESS : Thanks .

24 MR. MARKS: So you are doubly required to tell

25 the truth.

ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC l
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1 DAVID ASHTON,

2 a witness herein, having been previously duly sworn by

3 the Cer tiffed Reporter to speak the truth and nothing

4 but the truth, was fur thee examined and testified as

5 follows :

6

7 DIRECT EXAMINATION CONTINUED

8 BY MR. MARKS :

9 Q. Good morning, Mr. Ashton.

10 A.

11 Q And thank you for traveling from Europe and

12 being here today.

13 A. You are welcome I

14 Q. please state your name and business address for

15 the record.

16 A. My name is David Ashton. My business address is

17 7131 West Avenida del Sol, Peoria, Arizona 85383.

18 Q. Mr. Ashton, have you ever testified before the

19 Arizona Corporation Commission before?

20 A. No .

21 Q. Now, Mr. Ashton, have you ever prepared written

22 testimony for the Corporation Commission before?

23 A. No.

24 Q Now, Mr. Ashton, do you have a document before

25 you that has been marked as Exhibit SF-38, and that's

ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
www.az-reporting.com
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1 titled revised direct testimony of David Ashton on

2 behalf o f Swing First Golf, dated March 2nd, 2009?

3 Yes I do.I

4 Q. Now, is Exhibit SF-38 prepared by you or under

5 your direction and supervision?

6 A.

7

8

As I have testified, I never prepared written

testimony before, so I prepared a narrative which my

attorney used to prepare a first draft of my testimony.

9 From that deaf t, my attorney and I worked together to

finalize the exhibit.10

11 Q. Do you have any additions corrections to make

12 to Exhibit SF-38?

13 A. Yes I do.I On page 3, line 5, the date should

14 be December 2006.

15 Q If you would wait a second, let everybody get to

16 that page, please, Mr. Ashton.

17 A. Okay .

18 Q. That's on line 5 that should be December 2006I l

19 not December 2005?

20 A. That's right.

21 Q. And I wondered if you would make that correction

22 in the exhibit, because that will be par t of the record.

23 Sure .

24 Do you have a pen?

25 A. Yes I do.I I have to find it. Okay .

A.

A.

ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC l
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1 Q.

2

And, Mr. Ashton, do you have any other

corrections to make to Exhibit SF-38?

3 A. Yes there i s oneI more , on page 13, line 15.

4 Q G o ahead.

5 A. The date should be April 2005, not

6 February 2005. And I can make that correction, also.

7 Q. Thank you, if you would do so.

8

9

And, Mr. Ashton, do you have any additional

corrections to make to Exhibit SF-38?

10 A. No.

11 Q And with those corrections, if I were to ask you

12 the same questions today that are contained in

13

14

Exhibit SF-38, would your answers be the same?

Yes, they would.A.

15 MR U MARKS : Your Honor, at this time I move the

16 admission of Exhibit SF-38.

17 MR. METLI: No objection.

18 MR. POZEFSKY: No objection, Your Honor.

19 MS. MITCHELL: no.

20 ALJ WOLFE : SF-38 is admitted.

21 (Exhibit no. SF-38 was admitted into evidence.)

22 BY MR. MARKS :

23 Q. Now, Mr. Ashton, I would like you to turn to

24 what has been marked as Exhibit SF-39. Do you have that

25 exhibit in front of you?

ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC I
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1 Yes I do.I

2 Q And for the record, is Exhibit SF-39 a document

3 titled sur rebuttal testimony of David Ashton on behalf

4 of Swing First Golf, LLC, dated March 31st, 2009?

5 A. Yes.

6 Q. And was Exhibit SF-39 prepared by you or under

7 your direction and supervision?

8 A. It was prepared the same way as Exhibit SF-38 I

9 under my -- yes, under my direction and supervision.

10 Q. Do you have any additions or corrections to make

11 t o Exhibit SF-39?

12 A.

13

On page 2 there is a long table -- let me just

go to it -- that summarizes utility's effluent

14 production, their sales, their recharges from the San

15 Tan water waste treatment plant. And the table goes

16 from January 2006 through the end of '08, And I a m

17 to my knowledge it is accurate. However I want t o noteI

18 that Exhibit SF-42 is more complete because it extends

19 through August 2009. But that's just something to be

20 noted. That's all I have to SF-39.

21 MR I MARKS :

22

Thank you.

Your Honor, at this time I move the admission of

23 Exhibit SF-39.

24 ALJ WOLFE : There was no objection at the

25 prehearing conference, so SF-39 is admitted.

A.

ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
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1 (Exhibit No. SF-39 was admitted into evidence.)

2 BY MR. MARKS :

3 Mr. Ashton, I understand that you wish to

4 provide a short summary o f your testimony, i s that

5 correct?

6 A. Yes.

7 Q.

8 A. I am managing member

9

Please proceed.

My name is David Ashton.

of Swing First Golf, LLC, which purchases irrigation

10 water from Johnson Utilities for our Johnson Ranch golf

11 course

12 From the very beginning of my ownership in the

13 course, we have wanted to use treated effluent as much

14 as possible to irrigate our golf course. In 2006, Swing

15

16

First managed George Johnson's Oasis golf course.

Mr. Johnson agreed to pay us with free irrigation water

17 for the golf course.

18 months .

We managed his golf course for six

For each of those months during that time we

19 would receive an irrigation bill which we were told not

The next month we would receive another bill20 to pay

21 with no past due balance.

22

This arrangement continued

for six months until I discontinued the management

23 contract in writing effective October 31st, 2006.

24 From that point forward, utility's customer

25 service and billing have been deplorable. , even

ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
www.az-reporting.com
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1

2

though we had provided the agreed upon services for

Mr. Johnson, utility rebelled us for the 2006 credited

3 irrigation water in the amount of about $52,000. Then

4 beginning in 2007, utility essentially stopped

5 delivering effluent to us, and for the little that it

6 did deliver, it billed us at 33 percent more than the

7 tariffed rate.

8

9

Despite clearly having enough effluent,

utility lied and said that it only had limited supplies.

Instead of effluent, the utility delivered CAP water to

10

11

my golf course and then charged me five times the lawful

Our total effluent purchases inrate for CAP water.

12 2007 were about 10 million gallons, even though utility

13 produced almost 185 million gallons of effluent.

14

15

As a result of these overcharges, utility

created a huge past due balance -- I would call it a

16

17

phony or f aka or dishonest past due balance, whatever

word you want to use -- which it then used in November

18

19

2007 as a pretext to cut off my water service without

proper notice.

20

21

22

They f ailed to follow the Commission's rules

before cutting off our service, and only after I filed a

complaint with the Corporation Commission was our

23

24

That was an informal complaint.

I also had discussions with other irrigation

25 customers, most notably the San Tan Heights homeowners

ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
www.az-reporting.com
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1 association, because they were also concerned about

2 their irrigation bills. And I looked at at tee thoseI

3 discussions at their request, I looked over their bills

4 I

5

because of my experience with the law and these tariffs

which they didn't have. And I determined that they were

6 being charged $3.75 per thousand gallons for effluent.

7 I hope those in the room recognize that $3.75 per

8 thousand gallons is six times the legal rate of 62 cents

9 per thousand gallons.

10

11

Because I spoke with the San Tan Heights

homeowners association because they had concerns, the

12 utility sued Swing First Golf and me in court, including

13

14

my wife, for def Imation, for discussing utility's

billing and tariff issues with the HOA. That process

15 has been active for nearly two years.

16 At the end of January 2008 I filed a normal

17 Utility

18

complaint with the Corporation Commission.

received a copy of that complaint on Friday, February

19

20

21

I have been warned by utility employees that I

should absolutely never file a complaint with the

Corporation Commission.

22 MR. METLI: Objection, Your Honor.

23

I am going

to move to strike any hearsay discussions he had with

24 There i s n o

25

employees regarding any discussions.

evidence in the record to that effect.

ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
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1 ALJ WOLFE: Mr. Marks, would you like to

2 respond?

3 MR U MARKS :

4

Well, Your Honor, he is testis Ying

as to his knowledge and his state of mind as of the time

5 that he filed his complaint. And I think it serves as

6 foundation for the remaining part of his testimony.

7 is also in his testimony the f act of what he was told,

8

9

which hasn't been objected to.

Fur thee, although it is technically hearsay, the

10 Commission's rules on hearsay are much more relaxed than

11 they are .

12

And the company certainly has the ability to

respond by producing employees, if it wishes to, to cure

13 any possible taint that might be caused by using

14 hearsay I

15 MR. METLI: Your Honor, may I respond?

16 ALJ WOLFE: Yes .

17 MR. METLI:

18

The very basis of hearsay is to

prevent offering of testimony that is offered to prove

the actual asset sons and that's what Mr. Ashton is19 I

20 doing . He is trying to testis y to statements from

21 people who are not here, and he is offering them as

22 And that's the very nature of hearsay.

23 ALJ WOLFE:

24

It is going to be overruled because

it can reflect his state of mind. And this is an

25 administrative proceeding. Your objection is noted.

ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC I
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1 MR. METLI:

2 THE WITNESS:

Thank you.

Utility received a copy of that

3 A t that time becauseI

4

complaint Friday, February let.

it had been quite rainy, we didn't need any water to

5 But nonetheless, utility

6

7

irrigate our golf course.

began delivering effluent over the weekend in huge

quantities, which overflowed our lake and flooded the

8 golf course.

9

In my opinion this was in clear

retaliation for filing our complaint.

10

request I

For many days utility refused my personal

including Mr. Tompsett, refused my request to

12 stop flooding the golf course and stop deliveries. And

13 they continued to deliver that effluent . And then on

14 top of that, utility billed us in March for the unneeded

15 effluent, which we paid.

16

17

18

Twice in 2008 utility claimed

mysterious effluent line breaks that they claimed had

occurred, ironically during very high times of

irrigation demand, and because of that they f ailed to

19 deliver effluent.

20 On February 3rd, 2009 I filed testimony in this

21 docket .

22

Six days later, on February 9th, George Johnson

and utility sent a letter to Swing First members.

23 Utility's letter was clearly intended to intimidate the

24 members of Swing First from supporting Swing First and

25 my par ticipation in this case and in this complaint

ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
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1 against the utility. Utility's letter also attacked me

2

3

personally and attempted to destroy my business

relationship with the other Swing First members.

4

5

Utility's letter was also clearly retaliation in this

case against my filing testimony in this docket.

6 MR. IVIETLI: Your Honor, again, I let him finish.

7 I want to object to the assertion that the letter was

8

9

sent in retaliation and with respect to intimidation.

Mr. Ashton has no knowledge of what the state of mind of

10 the sender of the letter was.

11 ALJ WOLFE : The objection is noted.

12 THE WITNESS: So what is it that I hope the

13 Commission will do in this case? I already stated that

14 Swing First has a separate complaint concerning the

15

16

amount of utility overcharges and how much it would

refund to Swing First, so I am not asking the Commission

17 to address those issues in this case.

18 But what I have seen verified is the utility was

19

20

overcharging Swing First and other irrigation customers

Utility blames its billing system.in 2006 and 2007.

21 However, we also know that utility could and did create

22 phony bills. So f air question that I asked myself is

23 how many other customers, residential and commercial I

24

25

that are serviced by this organization were also

overcharged and are still being overcharged.

ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC I
www.az-reporting.com

(602) 274-9944

Phoenix, AZ



WS-02987A-08-0180 VOL 1 v 09/24/2009
528

1 In our case and for the HOA, utility made

2

3

par rial corrections of tar it got caught, not before.

The only way to ensure that utility has indeed corrected

4

5

any and all of its overcharges to past and present

customers would be for the Commission to order utility

6 to perform an audit of its past sales and billing

7 practices.

8 Mr. Johnson has used his utility as his

9 personal, his, let m e say, a s his alter ego t o fur thee

10 his own business interests and to punish anyone who has

11 gotten in his way, and I am an example of that .

12 Ms. Rowels discusses Mr. Johnson's environmental

13 record, which I think is well-known, and that of his

14 utility I She also discusses other incidents of customer

15 abuse, knowing customer overcharges and utility's under

16 authorized unauthorized delay of this rate filing

17 which allowed it to continue overcharging its customers.

18 In my opinion the time has come to take strong

19 action against George Johnson and his utility. Again,

20

21

in my opinion, the Commission cannot allow this utility

to continue to run roughshod over the environment, the

22 law, and its customers. Again, I am an example of that.

Ms. Rowell makes nine recommendations that I23

24 strongly recommend the Commission adopt. Thank you for

25 providing me the opportunity to testis y.
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1 BY MR. MARKS :

2 Q. Thank you, Mr. Ashton. I would like to ask you

3 just a few more questions before I turn you over for

4 cross-examination.

5 A. Okay .

6 Mr. Ashton, do you have a copy of Exhibit SF-28

7 up there?

8 A. No.

9 ALJ WOLFE: Let's go off the record.

10 (Brief pause.)

11 ALJ WOLFE: The

12

Let's go back on the record.

witness has been provided with a copy of Exhibit SF-28.

13 BY MR. MARKS :

14 Q. Now, Mr. Ashton, this exhibit was previously

15 admitted. However, Mr. Tompsett said he could not

16

17

serif y the photographs, that these were the photographs

that accompanied the e-mail. So I would like you to

18

19

take a look at the photographs that are shown on the

last page of Exhibit SF-28, if you would, please.

20 A. I am looking.

21 Q Have you seen these before?

22 A . Yes I have.I My manager at the golf course I

23 Jeff Lundgren, took these photographs on February let I

24 at my request, 2008.

25 Q That's probably, Saturday was probably February

Q.

ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC »
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1 2nd

2 A. Okay.

i s that correct?3 Q.

4 But it was a Saturday, as f at as you can

5 remember?

6

7 Q.

8 Exhibit SF-28.

As f at as I can remember, yes, it was.

Now, please turn to the first page of

Did you send that e-mail to Mr. Tompsett

9 on February 6, 2008?

10 Yes I did.I

11 Q. A n e-mail shows that there were four attachments

12 to it water 002.JPG, water 003.JPG, water 004.».TPG, andI

13 water 005.JPG. Do you see that?

14 A. Yes I do.I

15 Q. Now, what is a JPG file?

16 A.

17

18

It is a photographic format designed to compress

photographic files so they can be more easily sent

electronically.

19 Q. Now, if you turn back to the photographs on the

20 last page of Exhibit SF-28 I are these copies of the

21 photographs that you sent to Mr. Tompsett with the

22 February 6 e-mail that we discussed on the first page of

23 Exhibit SF-28?

24 A. Yes.

25 Q Are there any things in these photographs that

A.

A.
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1 you would like to bring to the Commission's attention?

2 A. Sure . I mean I think it is clear looking at the

3 photographs the extent of the flooding on the 18th

4 f airway c If you want to get a sense for the scale et

5

6 and the top right-hand corner.

the flooding, please look at the bottom let t photograph

There is a golf cart --

7 excuse me I There is a golf car t in the upper right

8 corner of that photograph, which is dwarfed by the size

9 of the flooding on the 18th f airway.

10 Q

11

Mr. Ashton, to your knowledge did members of the

public come in contact with the flooded effluent?

12 A. Absolutely. Unfortunately, golfers drove golf

13 car ts and walked through the effluent, and this caused

14 significant damage to the golf course. My employees

15 also came in contact with the effluent as par t of their

16 error ts to repair and clean up the course .

17 Q I would like to turn to another subject now,

18 Mr. Ashton. You can put SF-28 away.

19 A. You know, I want t o say one thing here.

20 Q. G o ahead.

21 A. This exhibit does not indicate does not showI

22 the response that Mr. Tompsett so kindly sent to me

at tar I sent this e-mail to him which said -- but is23

24 par t of this case and has been presented -- that this

25 kind of flooding is not a hazard, it is merely water on
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1 the grass.

2 MR. IVIETLI: Your Honor, I am going to object.

3 It is not par t

4

Mr. Ashton is now testifying to hearsay.

of Exhibit 28, and he is actually testifying to a

5 purported conversation he had, which is hearsay.

6 THE WITNESS: This was an e-mail.

7 Mr. Tompsett ' s response was an e-mail. H e wrote it. He

8 knows what h e wrote.

9 ALJ WOLFE: Do you have a copy cf that e-mail?

10 MR » MARKS : I do not.

11 ALJ WOLFE: Then let's not talk about statements

12 that were made that we don't have verification of I

13 because there i s a lot o f verification in the record of

14 And that's more likely to be

15

things that happened.

considered as hard evidence.

16

I am not going to strike

that from the record, but just so that you know.

17 THE WITNESS : Okay . Thank you .

18 BY MR. MARKS :

19 Q.

20

Mr. Ashton, you testified when you were here

last that you recorded a conversation with a Johnson

21 Utilities employee named Gary Larsen. Do you remember

22 that testimony?

23 A. Yes.

24 Q. Why did you record Mr. Larsen?

25 A. Unfold lunately, I had reason to believe based on
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1 previous discussions with Mr. Johnson and with

2 Mr. Larsen that utility wouldn't testis y truthfully if

3 it were required to provide testimony to the Commission.

4 So I wanted to confirm previous statements like that

5 made by Mr. Larsen concerning how Mr. Johnson ran his

6 utility -- Mr. Tompsett as well -- and what he thought

7 o f the Commission. I was specifically interested in

8 confirming previous statements by Mr. Larsen that

9 Mr. Johnson had ordered him to raise our rates in the

10 billing system.

11 MR. IVIETLI: Objection, Your Honor. I am sorry.

12 If Mr. Ashton is testifying to statements made by

13 Mr. Larsen that's not par t of the record, I am going to

14 object.

15 MR ¢ MARKS : Your Honor, this is in f act this isI

16 actually in Mr. Ashton's testimony, in his direct

17 testimony, that Mr. Larsen had told him that he was

18 ordered to raise the rates in the billing system.

19 That's in the record. It was not objected to. And h e

20 is talking about why he was interested in confirming

21 that . That's all. It is his state of mind.

22 ALJ WOLFE: Sustained.

23 BY MR. MARKS :

24 Q. Is this recording the same one that Swing First

25 had transcribed and submitted to the par ties in the
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1 docket?

2 A. Yes it is.l

3 Q Are there any other recordings or

4 transcriptions?

5 A . No.

6 And you reviewed the recordings and the

7 transcription?

8 A. Yes I have.I

9 Q. And was the transcript an accurate rendition of

10 the recording?

11 As f at as was possible. Unfold lunately a lot of

12

13

it was unintelligible.

Did you tell Mr. Larsen that you wereQ. Okay .

14 recording -- that you were not recording the

15 conversation?

16 A. Yes I did.I

17 Q.

18

And why did you tell him that when you were

actually recording him?

19 Gary was the only golf course employee -- excuse

20 me -- the only utility employee that I ever dealt with

21 that as f at as I could tell had been honest with me.

22 Among other things he told me George Johnson ordered him

23 t o increase our water rates above the tariffed rates i n

24 But Gary was terrified of

25

the billing system.

Mr. Johnson, just absolutely terrified of him.

A.

Q.

A.
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1 MR. METLI: Now i t i s

2

Objection, Your Honor.

going to the state of mind of Mr. Larsen. I am going to

3 object.

4 THE WITNESS: Can I rephrase?

5 ALJ WOLFE: Yes. I would ask you not to testis y

6 as to the state of mind Of another person.

7 THE WITNESS: Okay . Mr. Larsen told me that

8 Mr. Johnson paid his salary. He was terrified

9 MR. IVIETLI: Your Honor, I am going to object.

10 Now he is testis Ying to what Mr. Larsen told him, which

11 is hearsay.

12 MR I MARKS : And again, Your Honor, this is

13 simply I asked Mr. Ashton why he told him that he was

14 not recording him when he was actually recording him,

15

16

and I am trying to get to the witness' state of mind why

he made the recording in that manner. It is important

17 that it is on the record.

18 ALJ WOLFE : Mr. Ashton, you can tell us what you

19 believed.

20 THE WITNESS: Okay, thank you.

21 So I believe that Mr. Larsen said to me that he

22 was terrified of Mr. Johnson. So I knew that he would

23 never confirm the statement in writing or if he was

24 asked to testis y. And I believe

25 MR. METLI: Objection
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1 THE WITNESS: that Mr. Larsen also told me

2 MR. METLI : Your Honor, and I apologize, I don't

3 mean to be disrespectful or keep interpreting

4 Mr. Ashton, I apologize for that, but, again, now he is

5 talking to what Mr. Larsen told him. And, again, that's

6 inadmissible hearsay.

7 THE WITNESS : This is on the record.

8 ALJ WOLFE: Just a moment Mr. Ashton.I

9 Mr. Metli, your objections are well taken. And

10 what is already on the record the company can refute by

11 bringing on another a witness to refute it.

12 But for now, Mr. Ashton, you can testis y as to

13 what you believe, but not what you believed someone else

14 That's kind of a back door way to get around it.

15 THE WITNESS : Okay .

16 ALJ WOLFE: You do have a lot of testimony in

And let's stick to17 the record already about the f acts.

18 the f acts and what happened. And you can testis y what

19 you believe on your personal beliefs.

20 THE WITNESS: Thank you .

21 So the only way I could get Mr. Larsen's

22 statements confirmed was t o record them without his

23 knowledge .

24 BY MR. MARKS :

25 Do you remember discussing with Mr. Larsen that
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1

2

same day the invoice that you had received from Johnson

Utilities for Swing First irrigation water?

3 A. Yes.

4 Q. And did you promise Mr. Larsen that you would

5 not reveal that he had sent you the invoice and that you

6 would destroy it?

7 yes.

8 Q.

9 A.

Why didn't you destroy it?

I think there were two reasons. The first is

10 that I didn't have any physical copies. I only had it

The second is that at11 a s a n attachment t o a n e-mail.

12 that point I was already in litigation with the utility

13 and realized that I really couldn't destroy it based on

14 that that f act.I

15 Q. Now, why did you ultimately reveal it to the

16 Commission?

17 You know, I waited as long as I could. The

18 conversation with Mr. Larsen was on February let, 2008.

19

20 day .

21

Johnson Utilities began flooding my golf course the next

They flooded my golf course, I didn't reveal it.

All through the complaint case, throughout the case I

22 still didn't say anything.

23 In February 2009, Mr. Johnson sent a def amatory

24 letter to my investors, and I still didn't say anything,

25 including to my attorney. But it was only after

A.

A.
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1 Mr. Tompsett lied to the Commission in his refiled

2 testimony on March 24 th that I decided to make the

3 MR. METLI: Objection, Your Honor,

4 argumentative. He is purporting to say that

There i s n o evidence o f that and he5 Mr. Tompsett lied.

6 is being argumentative in his opinion.

7 ALJ WOLFE: That will b e taken as Mr. Ashton's

8 opinion v

9 THE WITNESS:

10

It was only at tar I believed that

Mr. Tompsett lied to the Commission in his testimony on

11 March 24 th that I decided to make the conversation and

12 the invoice public. I knew exactly what impact that

13 would have on Mr. Larsen, and that was not something

14 that I ever wanted to do to him.

15 BY MR. MARKS :

16 Q.

17 A.

why do you believe that Mr. Tompsett lied?

As refiled testimony filed on March 24 th he

18 stated that neither Mr. Larsen nor Ms. Davis, December

19 Davis, the CFO of the utility, told Mr. Ashton that

20 Johnson Utilities does not follow the law in its billing

21

22

practices or that Mr. Johnson told them to conduct

illegal billing practices.

23 Q So was that statement what prompted you to make

24 the conversation and invoice public?

25 A. Yes it was.I
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1 MR. MARKS: Another subject briefly, Your Honor,

2 and I a m almost done here .

3 BY MR. MARKS :

4 Q

5

Do you know if utility can lawfully provide free

water to pay for services provided to an affiliate?

6 A. I am not a lawyer. So, you know, any opinion

7 that I provide i s just my belief or my common

8 But in 2006 I really had no idea what

9

understanding.

the law required, and I trusted Mr. Johnson as an expert

10 in utility law that he would not attempt to do anything

11

12 Mr. Johnson has his office on Shea Boulevard in,

13 I think, Phoenix where he runs Johnson Utilities and all

14 his other businesses. His employees have desks outside

15 Mr. Johnson said he

16

his private office in a big room.

could pay for our management services with free water

17 for our golf course.

18 MR. METLI: Objection, Your Honor. Now he i s

19 testis Ying to hearsay as to what Mr. Johnson said to

20 him .

21 THE WITNESS: To the best of my knowledge I

22 believe that Mr. John -- I don't even know how to

23 rephrase that I mean, how do you rephrase what

24 somebody said?

25 MR l MARKS : Perhaps I could help here.
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1 ALJ WOLFE: Please go ahead.

2 BY MR. MARKS :

3 Q. In the complaint case and in this case you

4 allege that Mr. Johnson agreed that you and Mr. Johnson

5

6

had an agreement that you would provide management

and he would pay for those management servicesservices,

7 for free water, i s that correct?

8 A.

9 Q Do you have any reason to doubt in any way the

10 legality of that transaction?

11 A. No.

12 Now, has anybody since that time from Johnson

13 Utilities told you that a utility cannot sell water at

14 less than its tariffs?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. Who was that?

17 A. Brian Tompsett.

18 MR. METLI: I am trying

19

Objection, Your Honor.

to get the objections in as I can. I apologize.

20 ALJ WOLFE: The objection is noted.

21 BY MR. MARKS :

22 Q was there any way, even assuming arguendo -- I

23

24

am sorry, using Latin here.

Assuming for argument's sake that it would have

25 been illegal directly to provide free water to your golf

Q.
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1

2

course, was there any way that the utility could have

lawfully accomplished this?

3 Sure . I mean we could have - - I mean , I don't:

4 know, I am not an expel t.

5

We could have, you know, been

paid in cash for the services that we provided and then

6 But

7

8 Q.

9

paid him in cash for the water that we consumed.

that's not what was proposed.

Do you know if -- I mean do you have any

knowledge of whether the golf course may have paid

10 Johnson Utilities for the water that it was providing to

11 the irrigation customers?

12 A. I am not sure I understand the question.

13 sorry I

14 Q Do you know if the Oasis golf course perhaps may

15 have paid for your water service?

16 A. No, I don't know that.

17 Q.

18

One last topic, i f you would, Mr. Ashton.

you would take a look at Exhibit SF-30. Do you have

19 that up there?

20 A. Yes I think I do.I Yes here it is.I

21 Q Take a look at that for a moment . And

22 specifically, if you would, look at the last page of

23 SF-30 I And that's a copy of an invoice from Johnson

24 Utilities to Gary Larsen, is that correct?

25 A. Yes it was.I

A.
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1 Q. Have you seen this before?

2 Yes I have.I

3 Q.

4

Now, if you turn back to the first page, the

second page of the exhibit -- I am sorry -- third

5 page of the exhibit, there is an e-mail.

this before?

Have you seen

6

7 A. Yes.

8 And was this the e-mail by which Mr. Larsen sent

9 you a copy of the invoice?

10 A. Yes it was.I

11 Q. And is this the same invoice that you discussed

12 with Mr. Larsen in the conversation that you recorded on

13 February let, 2009?

14 A. Yes.

15 MR l MARKS : Thank you, Mr. Ashton.

16 Mr. Ashton i s now available for

17 cross-examination I

18 ALJ WOLFE: Mr. Pozefsky, does RUCO have

19 questions for this witness?

20 MR. POZEFSKY: I do, Your Honor. Thank you .

21

22 CROSS-EXAMINATION

23 BY MR. POZEFSKY:

24 Q Good morning, Mr. Ashton. How are you?

25 A. Good . How are you?

A.

Q.
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1 Q. I used the term

2

You, in your summary up there

lied to describe what you believe Mr. Tompsett testified

3 How would you define a lie?

4 A. I guess the best way I define it off the top of

5 my head is when someone makes a statement that they know

6

7

is not true and tries to pass it off as truth.

Would you agree that a lie suggests dishonesty?Q.

8 Yes it does.I

9 Q. And once a person lies before the Commission,

10 Mr. Ashton, do you believe the Commission should

11 disregard his or her testimony?

12 Once a person lies before the Commission?

13 Q. Yes.

14 A. I think, you know, lying is -- lying under oath

15 creates serious credibility problems for a person that

16 would do that.

17 Q.

18

Do you draw a distinction between lying under

oath and lying not under oath?

19 A. Do I draw a distinction? No. N o I don't.I

20 Q. I am going to hand you what is marked RUCO

21 Exhibit No. R-6.

22 Your Honor, before I proceed with this exhibit

This is the exhibit that

I

23 let me explain something.

24 Mr. Crockett mentioned earlier, RUCO's version o f that

25 document 1 My intention at this point is to just have it

A.

A.

ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC »

www.az-reporting.com

(602) 274-9944

Phoenix, AZ



WS-02987A-08-0180 VOL U v 09/24/2009
544

1 marked and ask some questions on it with Mr. Ashton.

2 The par t that I understand the company is going

3 to object t:o, or we want to talk about off the record,

4 has to do with some questions or an excerpt that I have

5 t o ask Mr. Tompsett about

6

So I am not at that point

where I am going to ask to get that par t admitted or get

7 any of this admitted. But I do have I believe,I

8 consensus on the questions, the areas that are in here

9 that are not on SF-32 I have consensus with all theI

10 par ties, I believe, if you can understand what I just

11 said.

12 ALJ WOLFE : I think I do, based on

13 Mr. Crockett's earlier statements.

14 I s that correct Mr. Crockett, that there areI

15 some portions that RUCO wants to have considered that

16 the company does not object to?

17 MR. CROCKETT : That is correct Your Honor.I

18 ALJ WOLFE: Then you will let us know, I am

19 sure , if he strays from that? Okay .

20 MR. POZEFSKY: Thank you .

21 Thank you, Mr. Crockett. And thank you, Mr.

22 well, everyone else, Mr. Marks.

23 BY MR. POZEFSKY:

24 Q

25

Mr. Ashton, before you should be what is marked

RUCO's Exhibit No. 6, which is a copy of the, a redacted

ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC I

www.az-reporting.com

(602) 274-9944
Phoenix, AZ



WS-02987A-08-0_80 VOL. v 09/24/2009
545

1 copy of the transcript dated February let or the

2 conversation of February 1st, 2008. Does that appear t o

3 be what it is?

4 Yes.

5 Q. Okay . And if you would, there are two portions

6

7

in this transcript, page 6 and page 22.

take a second, and let's star t with page 6.

8

why don't you

And if you

see Mr. Larsen on line 11 on page 6, there is a question

9 and a n answer:

10 Mr. Larsen: In -- in my opinion -- you're not

11 recording me or anything, are you?

12 And you say: N o , come on.

13 I s that correct?

14 A. Yes.

15 Q. And then on page 22 on line 21, there is a

16 similar question:

17 Mr. Larsen: Are you recording me?

18 no, dude. No. I'm looking for you to help me.

19 I s that correct?

20 A. Yes.

21 Q.

22 Mr.

And let me ask you, you talked a little bit with

Marks about why you said that, but would you agree

23 that you were being dishonest in those two situations?

24 A. Yes I, was .

25 Let's go to page 44 of the transcript. Could

A.
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1 you read lines 10 and 11.

2 A. Mr. Ashton: My -- yeah. As long as I can get

3 honesty from the utility, we're going to be fine.

4 Q Shouldn't you -- you make it clear that you

5 expect honesty from the company. Shouldn't the company

6 expect honesty from you?

7 A. Yes.

8 Q. Do you think it was f air to Mr. Larsen to tape

9 record a conversation that you told him you were not

10 recording?

11 A. I don't know what the word f air means in this

12 context l

13 Q. Well, do you think -- let me strike that.

14 Let's go to page 46.

15

Star ting on line 22, you

state that, to Mr. Larsen, I'm just going to reiterate

16 that you don't have to worry about -- about any of that I

17 you are not going to be exposed.

18

19

Do you think you exposed Mr. Larsen by revealing

this transcript, Mr. Ashton?

20 A. Yes I did.I

21 Q. Do you think you exposed anyone else in this

22

23

company or anyone else in the company with this

transcript, Mr. Larsen -- Mr. Ashton? Excuse me »

24 A. Yes I do.I

25 Q. who else do you feel you exposed with this
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1 transcript?

2 A . Mr. Johnson and Mr. Tompsett.

3 Q And you feel that being dishonest was the only

4 way that you could get Mr. Larsen to talk?

5 A.

6 Q

I believe that very strongly, yes.

In your dealings with Mr. Larsen in the past I

7 has he ever told you something you knew to be untrue or

8 later found out were untrue?

9 yes.

10 Q. Do you have any reason to believe that

11 Mr. Larsen was not being completely honest throughout

12 this conversation?

13 A. No.

14 Q In your opinion, was Mr. Larsen an honest

15 individual?

16 A. That's a very interesting question. Mr. Larsen,

17

18

19

in my opinion, did what he needed to do to keep his job.

And anything that required him -- that was required of

him to do to keep his job, he would do it. And that

20 included, in my opinion, enormous, enormous amounts of

21 fraud perpetrated to the

22 MR. METLI: Objection, Your HonorI assumes f acts

23 not in evidence.

24 THE WITNESS: I thought you asked for my

25 opinion, but perhaps I am mistaken.

A.
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1 ALJ WOLFE: The objection is noted I can't

2 strike .

3 MR. METLI: I understand. I mean I don't want

4 Can I continue t o make

5

to keep interrupting Mr. Ashton.

objections or should I make a standing objection? How

6 would you like to address that?

7 ALJ WOLFE:

8

9

You can certainly make an objection

any time you feel that you need to make an objection,

hopefully to a question before the answer gets on the

10 record U

11 MR. IVIETLI : Okay . That's hard, Your Honor.

12 ALJ WOLFE: I understand. And I don't envy you

13 MR. METLI: Okay . That makes me feel better

14 then . Okay .

15 THE WITNESS: So to finish answering the

16

17

question, in my opinion, the only time Mr. Larsen felt

comfortable telling the truth about what Mr. Johnson,

18

19

how he and Mr. Tompsett ran or run the utility, was when

he felt that he could not be exposed for that . And

20 there were many occasions where he had made statements

21

22

like this to me in other settings.

So I didn't go to record this conversation

23 believing that maybe something would happen. I knew

24 what he was going to say, because he already said it to

25 me. And he had already said to me I will never ever say
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1 this in a way that can ever be known.

2 BY MR. POZEFSKY:

3 Q. So you believe that if Mr. Larsen knew the

4 conversation was being recorded, he would never have

5 talked to you?

6 A. H e told me h e wouldn't He had told me that

7 before .

8 Q. And just so I know, Mr. Ashton, and we all know,

9 how did the recording work? Did you have a recorder in

10 your pocket?

11 A. yes.

12 Q. Okay .

13 A.

14

I think in this very suit pocket, which shows

you that I don't buy new suits very of ten, but

15

16

17

nonetheless I think it was right here.

Okay. Mr. Ashton, given that you have been

admittedly dishonest, why should we believe that what

18

19

20

you have to say is truthful?

I think you should draw your own conclusions

based on my behavior and utility's behavior.

This is the third time I have come to the

I am here

21 to testis y.

22 United States for the purposes of this process. And as

23 f at as I can tell, over the last two years, I haven't

24

25

generated a whole lot of benefit for myself by engaging

in this process. But in my opinion, I have done it and

Q.

A.
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1 been willing to do it because I believe that there is a

2 principle here that needs to be addressed. And perhaps

3 maybe there is a public service that needs to take place

4 as well.

5 Q.

6

Prior to your conversation of February 1st,

Mr. Ashton, how would you describe your relationship

7 with Mr. Johnson -- or Mr. Larsen? Excuse me I

8 A. February let, 2008?

9 Q.

10 A. Mr. Larsen was a very, very stressed out person.

11 Larsen in this transcript he got his

12

According to Mr.

ass chewed daily by Mr Johnson 9

13 MR. IVIETLI : Objection, Your Honor. You know

14 what? Withdrawn

15 THE WITNESS: Thank you .

16

17

According to Mr. Larsen, he got his ass chewed

daily by Mr. Johnson about issues related to this issue.

18 And Mr. Larsen was not a happy, in my opinion, not a

19 happy, secure, or stable person, even though he wanted

And that created difficult situations sometimes20 to be.

21 between us, because I really liked Mr. Larsen. And I

22

23

could see in my opinion that he was doing everything he

could to be honest as long as it didn't cost him his

24 job And unfold lunately, in my opinion, he felt

25 that no, I will redact that.
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1 I believe h e was under enormous stress, and

2 because I had come to him, as had my manager many timesI

3 to say, Gary, what you guys are doing is not legal, and

because he knew what the law I think he felt4 was,

5 enormous stress.

6

What do you do when your boss is

telling you to do certain things that are illegal?

7 MR. METLI: Objection, Your Honor.

8 THE WITNESS:

9

10 MR. METLI:

11

What do you do if your boss is

telling you to do things illegal?

Objection, Your Honor.

I think you have answered theALJ WOLFE:

12 question

13 BY MR. POZEFSKY:

14 Would you define your relationship with

15 Mr. Larsen, Mr. Ashton, as one of trust?

16 A. Yes. Yes I would.I

17 Q. You don't have a relationship with him now, do

18 you?

19 A. Unfold lunately, no, I don't.

20 Q.

21

From what you have been saying you have had many

conversations with Mr. Larsen in the past prior to

22 February let, 2008, correct?

23 A. Yes.

24 Q

25

And Mr. Larsen was a company representative that

you would go to if you had questions regarding your

Q.
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1

2 A. Yes. We were told to do that.

3 Let me ask you, Mr. Ashton, prior to the

conversation of February let, 2008, did Mr. Larsen ever4

5 tell you that the company was intentionally overfilling

6 you?

7 A. Yes.

8 Q. When?

9 A. well, I don't -- I am sorry that I can't tell

10 There was a t least one

11

you the exact date. specific

instance in my manager's office where he specifically

12 MR l IVIETLI Objection, Your Honor. He is

13 testifying to what Mr. Larsen told him. It is hearsay.

14 ALJ WOLFE: I really would appreciate it if you

15 would object when the question is asked before the

16

17

witness begins an answer, because it was the question

that was asking for what Mr. Larsen told him. S o I

18 don't know what to say except that maybe we can ask

Mr. Ashton when did you believe that you were being19

20 billed incorrectly

21 THE WITNESS: Okay.

So the answer to the question when did I believe

Thank you, Your Honor.

22

23

24

I was being billed incorrectly, let me pose an example

If you pay for gas once a week at $2 a gallonfor you. I

25 and every week that statement shows up on your credit
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1 card as having been billed at $2 a gallon, and then one

2 week it shows up as $12 a gallon, are you going to have

3 questions about it? I began to believe that we were

4 being billed illegally when I star Ted getting bills from

5 Mr. Johnson and Mr. Tompsett for $3.75 for a thousand

6 gallons of water.

7 BY MR. POZEFSKY:

8 Q.

9 A.

why do you believe you were being overfilled?

Can I answer this question or will you object?

10 You should object before I answer.

11 MR. METLI: The question is not objectionable I

12 If your answer is objectionable I will object.

13 ALJ WOLFE : Please refrain from addressing the

14 other attorneys, just the attorney who is asking you a

15 question.

16 THE WITNESS: Can you repeat the question?

17 forgot .

18 BY MR. POZEFSKY:

19 Q. Sure .

20

why do you believe you were being

overfilled, Mr. Ashton?

21 A. Because -- two reasons • Number one, because it

22 is not normal to receive a commodity one month and then

23 the next month that commodity price which is regulated

24 by the state government goes up by 600 percent. That ' s

25 the first reason.
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1 Second reason i s because Mr. Larsen told me

2 that

3 MR. METLI: Objection.

4 BY MR. POZEFSKY:

5 Q.

6

Mr. Ashton, you don't believe that you were the

only one being overfilled, isn't that true?

7 A. I don't believe that now. I her mainly didn't

8 have reason to believe that at first.

9 Q. Let's turn to page 17 in the transcript, please.

10

11

If you would, Mr. Ashton, could you read a

And this is you

12

couple lines, lines 9 through 12.

speaking in this transcript.

13 A. I mean, I already have bills from residents that

14 show them being overcharged on their water meters, okay?

15 Q.

16

So at the time you had this conversation, you

had bills showing that other residents were being

17 overcharged. That's correct, right?

18 A. Yes. Perhaps I should clarify y. The last

19

20

question you asked I thought you meant when I first

received bills for 3.75 per thousand gallons from

21 Johnson Utilities because that was in 2006.I I had no

22 reason at that time to believe that others were being

23 overfilled by the utility.

24 But on February 8th or whatever the date of this

25 is, February 1st, 2008, I cer mainly did believe, based
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1 on bills that I had, that other Johnson Utilities

2 customers were being overfilled.

3 Q. And you were asked to provide those bills to

4 Johnson, isn't that correct?

5 A. I don't remember.

6 MR. POZEFSKY: Okay .

7

Your Honor, I was trying

not to do it this way because I have a confidential

8 exhibit 1

9 So I am going to

hand out what i s marked RUCO Exhibit R-7 which is a

I was trying to avoid the hassles involved

with that, but I feel it is necessary.

10 I

11 confidential exhibit.

12 ALJ WOLFE: Is there anyone in the room

13

Okay.

who hasn't signed a confidentiality agreement with the

14 company? You need to leave, and I am going to turn off

15 the mikes.

16 MR u MARKS : Your Honor, I have not and

17 Mr.

18 agreement I

Ashton has not signed any ser t of a confidentiality

Obviously he was a par Ty to it, and I am his

19 attorney, to the actual testimony itself.

20 ALJ WOLFE: Okay .

21 Please go ahead.

22 MS. MITCHELL: I was going to say I believe I

23

24

even though my Staff witnesses have let t, I believe they

signed Exhibit A, so I am going to have them, at least

25 Mr. Michlik, come back.
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1 ALJ WOLFE: Okay . Let's go off the record for a

2 moment, then, while you go and fetch Mr. Michlik if you

3 would like .

4 MS. MITCHELL: She did.

5 (Brief pause.)

6 ALJ WOLFE:

7

We will go back on the record.

Mr. Crockett, do you have an objection to having

8 this discussed?

9 MR. CROCKETT: No, Your Honor.

10 ALJ WOLFE: Okay . Let's just wait a moment

11 until the Staff people come back.

12 (An off-the-record discussion ensued.)

13 MS. MITCHELL: He doesn't want to. It is okay.

14 ALJ WOLFE: Let's go ahead, Mr. Pozefsky.

15 (The following pages contain confidential

16 information.)

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
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1 (Continuation of open hearing.)

2

3 ALJ WOLFE: At this time we will move out of

4 the confidential par son of the transcript. And I will

5 note that there were questions asked about an exhibit

6 that has been admitted and is confidential confidentialI

7 Exhibit R-7.

8 Go ahead, Mr. Pozefsky.

9 MR. POZEFSKY: Thank you, Your Honor.

10 BY MR. POZEFSKY:

11 Mr. Ashton, before I move away from page 6 I

12 which I asked you about earlier, I wanted to ask you a

13 question on that. It is page 6 of the February let I

14 2008 transcript. Do you have that before you?

15 A. Yes I do.I

16 Q. Mr. Ashton, star ting on line 21, Mr. Larsen

17 makes a statement that he wanted assurances from you

18

19

that a piece of paper you have, that you told

December you had, is going to disappear. I wanted to

20 ask you, Mr. Ashton, do you know what piece of paper

21 Mr. Larsen is talking about?

22 A. He was referring to what actually was never a

23

24

piece of paper, but: was the document referenced in, I

think, SF-30 me SF-30.I excuse , in So it is the e-mail

25 that he forwarded to me on November 21st 2007 with theI

Q.
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1 bill a s a n attachment. And that's, yes, that's what he

2 was referring to.

3 Q. Okay . And I guess I just don't understand. Why

4 in your opinion was this bill so controversial?

5 A. Because it would cost him his job, and it did.

6 And why do you believe it would cost him his

7 job? What do you mean?

8 A. Well two reasons.I So first of all if it is aI

9 real document, I think you can imagine my opinion on

10 that matter, but if it is a real document itI

11 demonstrates that Johnson Utilities when it feels it isI

12 necessary, will create phony bills and send bills to

13 their own employees for water received by the customers

14 That is ridiculous.

15 The second reason is because Mr. Larsen knew

16 that if he and you have asked me to, you know,

17 respond.

18 MR. METLI: I am going to object to his state of

19 mind, Your Honor, if he is going to testis y to what

20 Mr. Larsen knew.

21 THE WITNESS: It appears there was a legitimate

22 concern that Mr. Larsen could

23 MR. IVIETLI: Objection.

24 THE WITNESS: lose his job.

25 MR. METLI: Legitimate concern from Mr. Larsen,

Q.
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1 again, that's going to his state of mind.

2 ALJ WOLFE: The objection is noted.

3 Could you please read the question back.

4 (The record was read by the reporter as

5 requested as follows:

6 Question: And why do you believe it would

7 cost him his job? what do you mean?)

8 THE WITNESS: And the answer i s because i t cost

9 him his job.

10 BY MR. POZEFSKY:

11 Q.

12

Well, the question was why do you believe it

would cost him his job?

13 A. Because as Mr. Larsen stated in this transcript,

14 he would -- well, if I -- I can either delay this

15 proceeding until I find the statement or I can rephrase.

16 So I will just rephrase.

17

18 Q.

Can you state the question again.

why do you believe this would costSure .

19 Mr. Larsen his job?

20 A.

21

I believe that it would cost him his job because

if it became knowledge -- if it became -- if it came to

22 light that he had been communicating to me things like

23 phony bills being sent to him for water that I had

received, that he would be fired for it.24

25 Q. Let m e ask you this, Mr. Ashton, because quite

ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
www.az-reporting.com

(602) 274-9944

Phoenix, AZ



WS-02987A-08-0180 VOL » v 09/24/2009
571

1 frankly, this whole thing doesn't make a hell of a lot

2 o f sense. First of all, this bill that I am looking at

3 here, this invoice, it was billed to Gary Larsen. Why

4 did you have possession of it?

5 A. On November 20th, I believe it was
I

6 November 20th, Mr. Larsen called me

7 MR. METLI : Objection, Your Honor.

8 MR MARKS : There is no basis for an objection

9 to a phone call.

10 ALJ WOLFE: No. Well, you can testis y as to

11 receipt of a phone call.

12 MR. METLI: If he goes into

13

Okay, I apologize.

what was actually said in the telephone conference, I

14 will object.

15 THE WITNESS: Okay . So Mr. Larsen called me o n

16 November 20th and we just sat on the line and nobody

17 said anything to anybody.

18 BY MR. POZEFSKY:

19 Q.

20 A.

Well, that still doesn't answer my question.

Because I am not talking about whatCer mainly.

21 I

22

happened on the phone call because as soon as I do it

counsel will object.

23 ALJ WOLFE: What did you learn during the course

24 of the phone conversation?

25 THE WITNESS: I learned during the course of
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1 that conversation that Mr. Larsen wanted $1,000 in cash

2 from me » And I told him that I would not do that

3 because that was bribery.

4 BY MR. POZEFSKY:

5 Q. Okay . So still, I am still trying to find out

6 why you had this invoice.

7 A. Okay . So okay . So on November 20th, I had

8 no knowledge that Mr. Larsen had received a f eke bill

9 generated at the request of Brian Tompsett and George

10 Johnson I

11 MR. METLI : Objection.

12 THE WITNESS: Mr. Tompsett testified to that on

13 Monday .

14 ALJ WOLFE: Excuse me I What is the objection?

15 What is the basis of the objection?

16 MR. METLI : I don't believe I

17 Mr. Tompsett ' s testimony will speak for itself. And I

18 don't; believe Mr. Tompsett said that it was, it was

19 I think he what his

20

developed under George Johnson.

testimony was it was developed through the billing

21 dear tent.

22 ALJ WOLFE: And the transcript will speak for

23 itself regarding that.

as to his belief.

But also Mr. Ashton can testis y

24

25 Please go ahead.
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1 THE WITNESS: I have again forgotten the

2 question I

3 MR. POZEFSKY: Perhaps -- I have, too.

4 Could you read the question back, please.

5 ALJ WOLFE:

6

And thank you for doing that.

(The record was read by the reporter as

7 requested as follows:

8 Question C Okay . So still, I am still trying

9 to find out why you had this invoice.)

10 THE WITNESS: Okay?

11

So this is all my opinion.

But on November 20th, I didn't have any knowledge that

12 this bill had been sent to Gary. mean , can you

13 imagine how ludicrous this situation is? And I get a

14 phone call and he says -- I get a phone call and have

15 reason to believe based on the phone call that he wants

16 $1,000 in cash from me.

17 MR. METLI: He is not

18

Objection, Your Honor.

responsive to the question. The question was why did he

19 have the invoice.

20 THE WITNESS: I am trying to get an answer.

21 had the invoice because Mr. Larson sent i t t o but Ime,

22 thought we all knew that. So his question I think

23

24

correct me if I am wrong, Mr. Pozefsky -- the question

is why did I have the invoice, not did Mr. Larsen send

25 i t to me. I think we have established that. Can we
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1 move on?

2 ALJ WOLFE: Let's try not to argue. And try to

3

4

just keep calm and limit your answers to the question.

And I know it is difficult because I know this is anI

5 emotional subject. But let's just try to just answer

6 the question.

7 THE WITNESS: Okay .

8 BY MR. POZEFSKY:

9 Q Go ahead, Mr. Ashton, as you were saying.

10 A. Okay .

11 Q.

What is the question again?

My question is why did you have the invoice I

12 you know?

13 A. Mr. Larsen sent m e the invoice. W e all know

14 that . Therefore, the reason why Mr. Larsen sent me that

15 invoice is because I refused to give him $1,000, because

16 I believed that he was asking me for a bribe and I was

17 not going to pay a bribe to an employee of the utility.

18 And when I said those words to him, he, I

19 believe, was trying to demonstrate that he wasn't

20

21

actually trying to bribe me but that he had been sent a

Up to this point, again, I had no knowledge of

22 this bill, and he to try and demonstrate that heso ,

23

24

really did have a bill and he really was being charged

by his own bosses, by his own billing department for

25 this water, he sent me that bill. And when I got it, my
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1 jaw hit the floor

2 MR. METLI: Objection, Your Honor. He is going

3 beyond the scope of

4 ALJ WOLFE: On what?

5 MR. METLI: The question was why did he receive

He didn't ask him what was his reaction to6

7 when he received the bill. It is nonresponsive to his

8 question, Your Honor.

9 BY MR. POZEFSKY:

10 All right.

received the bill?

Q. What was your reaction when you

11

12 A. I mean, we are all, most of us here are

13 You know, I just couldn't

14

relatively reasonable people.

believe what I was dealing with.

15

You know, my water had

already been shut off twice without notice, without

16 legal proper notice And now I had an employee calling

17

18

19

me up saying I have -- I had an employee calling me up

and then he demonstrated through e-mail that he had been

sent a bill from his organization. I mean I just was

20 flabbergasted.

21 Q. Let's look at the bill for a second, Mr. Ashton.

22 The Johnson Ranch golf course -- and the Johnson Ranch

23

24

golf course, that's your golf course, correct, the swing

First golf course?

25 A. Yes.
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1 There is no other golf course, it is not under a

2 different name?

3 A. There are no other golf courses with this name ,

4 mean , if that's what you mean.

5 Q. Okay . And had you received a bill for this, to

6

7

Swing First? Did you personally receive a bill prior to

the time you received a bill from Mr. Larsen?

8 A. no.

9 Q. And was this a bill for effluent and CAP water

10 that was actually used by your golf course?

11 A. It was a bill for water that was actually used

12 by the golf course, yes. I don't know if it was for

13 really those amounts of effluent and CAP, because I

14 didn't try to confirm that.

15 Q. Were you ever billed for the use or for these

16 for this amount of water at any time?

17 A. I believe I was later, yes.

18 Q. Okay . Did you ever pay Mr. Larsen any money on

19 this bill?

20 A. Absolutely not.

21 Q. you water that

22

Did ever pay the company for this

is identified in this bill?

23 A. If we were billed for it, we paid it.

24 Q Okay . With regard to the golf course flooding,

25 Mr. Ashton, that was in February 2008, correct?

Q.
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1 A. Yes.

2 Q. I t was the same time that you had this

3 conversation with Mr. Larsen, correct?

4 I think it was one or two days of tee.

5 Q. Is there any coincidence in the timing, do you

6 think?

7 A. It is incredible. I mean it is just incredible.

8 Coincidences happen all the time. So it could have

9 been.

10 Q. Had you, prior to the time the golf course was

flooded, filed a complaint with the Commission alleging

12 service interruption violations?

13 A. Yes I had.I

14 Q How many times before?

15 A. Well, I filed an informal complaint I think in

16 early or mid November 2007 when the water was first shut

off without notice.17

18

At that point, the utility -- well,

this is the whole subject of this whole discussion, is I

19 mean this is why I have this invoice At tar I filed

20 that complaint, the water went back on. And I thought

21 the situation was resolved because I had filed that

22 complaint

23

The Corporation Commission called

Mr. Tompsett and said the water needs to be turned back

24 on, it can be turned off later under certain conditions

25 if these things happen or whatever And the water later

A.
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1 shortly thereafter went back on.

2 Now, I was in I, was in France. S o I was

3 getting phone calls, multiple ones a day, or I was

4 making them, to find out what was happening. And my

5 manager told me that water was coming out and going into

6

7 water.

the lake, and i t was being - - therefore, w e were getting

So I assumed that for the moment things had

8 calmed down.

9 But i t then got shut off again a second time

10 with no notice whatsoever. And that is the whole reason

11 why I got this bill from Mr. Larsen, because there

12 apparently was a dispute within Johnson Utilities about

13

14

15

whether or not they should have turned my water back on,

even though they had been ordered to do it by the

Corporation Commission. And so Mr. Larsen was held

16 responsible for having turned that water back on because

17 he managed the utility in Queen Creek, or whatever, at

18 that plant. And that's why he got this bill, because

19

20

George -- this is hearsay, so, you know.

Objection if you are going to sayMR. METLI :

21 what Mr. Johnson said.

22 THE WITNESS: Thank you . Okay .

23 ALJ WOLFE: You can go ahead and answer the

24 question. The objection is noted.

25 THE WITNESS : Okay . So because George became so
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1 enraged that Mr. Larsen had allowed the water to go back

2 on, despite the order from the Corporation Commission,

3 that he sent this invoice t o him as a lesson to him that

4 h e better do what Mr. Johnson tells him t o do. That I S

5 why he got his ass chewed daily, amongst other reasons.

6 BY MR. POZEFSKY:

7 Q

8

Well, Mr. Ashton, in all f fairness, George got

enraged, I mean did you see Mr. Johnson at any time

9 during this?

10 A. No, but Mr. Larsen told me that. And so, you

11 know, I am not allowed to talk about what Mr. Larsen

12 told me . That's why maybe my statements don't make as

13

14 Q.

15

16

much sense as they should.

Did you file a subsequent complaint or a

complaint regarding what you just described?

Well, in my formal complaint which was filedA.

17 I can't remember, I think February let a lot

18 of this was documented in the complaint . So yes, I mean

19 that wasn't the only thing in the complaint, but yes I

20 this was par t of it.

21 Q. Mr. Ashton, the weekend that the golf course was

22 flooded, isn't it true that it rained that weekend?

23 A. Yes. I think it had rained before as well.

24 Q Isn't it possible that the rain contributed to

25 the excess amount of water in the lake?
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1 A. No.

2 Q.

3 A.

4

How do you know that?

Well, in the five years I have owned the course

it probably rained, what, about 60 times and the course

has never flooded before.5

6

7

And, you know, rain doesn't

provide the kind of gallonage that's needed to overflow

the lake.

8

9

But, you know, so first of all, I just want to

be clear, the rain did not cause it.no, But even if we

10 had had a hurricane as such that it would have raised

12

13

the level of the lake very significantly, all it takes

is a phone call to a utility to say can you please turn

And they received many phone calls likethe water off.

14

15 Q.

16

that and they just refused to comply.

Did they receive one on that weekend?

Absolutely.A.

17 Q.

18

19 A.

20

21 , we

22

23

24

How is a company supposed to know what amount is

necessary to meet your needs but not flood the lake?

How are they supposed to know? Well, probably

the best way is if they do it, if it is starting to

flood call them up and say, hey, you know, the level

is getting too high, can you please stop delivery and

they comply with that. I mean it is not that hard,

really.

25 Q. So would you agree that the burden should be on
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1

2

you or the golf course to keep the company aware of the

company's water needs, especially if the weather

3 changes, conditions change not the company's but the

4 golf course's water needs?

5 A. Absolutely.

6 Q. Okay . Just one more area I want t o touch o n

7 with you, Mr. Ashton, something else in the transcript

8

9

on page 60. Again, I don't need to read the whole

thing, but this is you stating that you understand that

10

11

they want to, I don't need to use the word, but F you.

Who did you mean by they?

12 A. They means the utility. But the utility in many

13 conversations with Gary was synonymous with Mr. Johnson

14 and Mr. Tompsett.

15 Q.

16 A.

Why do you think they wanted to harm you?

Well, at that point -- so, you know, this was

17 objected to earlier already and then noted.

18 ALJ WOLFE: You don't have to you know, as

19

20

long as I don't tell you not to answer the question, you

may answer the question.

21 THE WITNESS: Ckay . Thank you . Thanks a lot.

22 Makes m e feel better.

23 You know, Mr. Larsen had warned

24

Tompsett and Mr.

me to absolutely never file a complaint with the

25 Corporation Commission. So, you know, when I went
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1

2

against what they had said to do that, I was very

concerned, very, very concerned about the retaliation

3

4

that, you know, that they might -- that Mr. Johnson and

Mr. Tompsett would take, you know, the way they would

5 try to retaliate. I had no idea what they would try to

6 do but I was concerned that something might happen.

7 So that statement was simply echoing to

8 Mr. Larsen that concern that I understood at that point

9 they were now focused, in my opinion, on the f act that I

10 wasn't backing down, because I believed I had, I was

being f air, but, because of that, that I could

12 understand why they would want to F me at that point.

13

14

But I never understood why they would want to do illegal

I just never understood.things before. I still don't I

15 really .

16 BY MR. POZEFSKY:

17 Q. Mr. Ashton, with regard to your billing

18

19

disputes, has the company credited your account for the

amount that remains in dispute?

20 A. No. So if you -- I assume that utility would

21 So we continued to receive bills in 2009 for the

22 $100,000 balance that we supposedly owe to utility.

23

24

Therefore, utility's claims of them having credited our

account are specious. I mean we keep getting bills for

25 100,000 plus dollars every month in back balance.
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1 Q.

2

And is it your position that those bills have

been paid or that the money is not owing?

3 Yes. The money is not owed.

4 Q.

5

Is that one of the things you are asking the

Commission in this case to do, to resolve that dispute?

6 Yes.

7 Q. And so that's the billing dispute that remains

8 outstanding at this time, correct?

9 A. Yes.

10 Q Is there any other disputes billing-wise that

11 remain outstanding at this time?

12 A. N o , no.

13 MR. POZEFSKY: Okay .

14 THE WITNESS: Unless I am missing something.

15 Mr. Marks.

16 MR | MARKS : Could I ask a clarification, Your

17 Honor?

18 ALJ WOLFE: Yes.

19

20 FURTHER DIRECT EXAMINATION

21 BY MR. MARKS :

22 Q

23

Mr. Ashton, when you state you are asking the

Commission to resolve the billing dispute, would that be

24 in the complaint case as opposed to this rate case?

25 A. Yes.

A.

A.
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1 MR I MARKS : Thank you .

2 ALJ WOLFE: Mr. Pozefsky.

3 MR. POZEFSKY: Thank you, Your Honor. I have

4 nothing fur thee

5 THE WITNESS : Thank you .

6 ALJ WOLFE: Ms. Mitchell, Ms. Vohra, how much

7 questioning do you have, estimated?

8 ms. VOI-IRA: Your Honor, I don't believe that my

9 questions will take very much longer than maybe 15

10 minutes I

11 ALJ WOLFE: Okay . G o ahead .

12 MS. VOHRA: Okay . Thank you.

13

14 CROSS-EXAMINATION

15 BY Ms. VOI-IRA:

16 Q. Hello, Mr. Ashton.

17 A. How are you?

18 Q. Good . How are you?

19

20

I want to just clarify y, ask you a few questions

to clarify y Swing First's relationship with the golf

21 course and with Johnson Utilities.

22 How many members are there? How many members

23 does Swing First Golf have?

24 A . I think 15.

25 Q. Okay . And as, correct me if I am wrong here I
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1

2

originally Swing First served as a management company

for the golf club at Oasis, is that correct?

3 Not originally. So par t of the subject of this

4 dispute is that we did in f act manage the Oasis for the

5 owners of that course during a six-month period in 2006,

6 but t1'1at ' s not why Swing First was created.

7

Swing First

was created to be the organization that purchased and

8 operates, operated or operates today the Golf Club at

9 Johnson Ranch. So we are the owners of that golf

10 course I When I refer to my golf course, that's what

11 that means .

12 Q. Okay . Originally when Swing First began

13 managing the golf course, the golf course was owned by a

14 company that was controlled by Mr. Johnson, is that

15 correct?

16 A. You mean the -- when you say the golf course,

17 did you mean the Oasis?

18 Q. Yes.

19 A. Yes, that's right.

20 Q. All right. And for how long was Swing First

21 receiving free effluent?

22 A . About six months.

23 Q And

24 But just to be clear, it was sometimes effluent I

25 it could have been CAP at other times. I am not sure.

A .

A .
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1 I don't know. You know, I didn't know what was going

2 into the pipe, so free water.

3 Q. Okay . And that was during 2007?

4 A. 2006 I

5 Q. 2006 I At any time during 2007 was Swing First

6 receiving free water?

7 A. No.

8 Q. Now, I believe, as I understand i t the water,I

9 the free water that we have been talking about was being

10 received from Johnson Utilities as a par t of some water

11 credit in exchange for course management, is that

12 correct?

13 A. That's correct.

14 So does that mean that Swing First Golf was not

15 being paid to manage?

16 A. W e were not

17

We were not being paid currency.

being paid money to manage it. We were being

18 compensated by the free water that was provided.

19 Q Gkay . And then at tar that you purchased, Swing

20 First Golf purchased the golf course?

21 A. No. So just to be clear on the timeline, at the

22 end of 2004, Swing First Golf purchased the Golf Club at

23 Johnson Ranch which we own today, and I am the managing

24 member of Swing First Golf. So we own the Golf Club at

25 Johnson Ranch.

Q.
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1

2

From the beginning of that relationship, the

utility was the provider of water to the Johnson Ranch

3 golf course.

4

But for many years prior to that and up

until today, the owner of the Oasis golf club, which is

5 five or six miles from Johnson Ranch, has been and is

6 Mr. Johnson. So he has -- he has owned that course for

7 as long as I have known about it, many, many years.

he continues to own it.

And

8 So we had already owned and

9 operated the Golf Club at Johnson Ranch for about a year

10 Johnson

11

and a half when we reached an agreement with Mr.

to manage his course as a second function that we were

12 performing.

13 Q. So at the same time that you owned Swing

14

Okay.

First Golf, that you owned the golf course -- that's

15 called Swing First Golf?

16 A. That's called the Golf Club a t Johnson Ranch.

17 You need to get out and play golf.

18 At the same time that Swing First owned Johnson

19 Ranch, you were also managing the Oasis?

20 A. That's right.

21 Q. Okay .

22

And as a par t of that management

agreement, or however you want to phrase it, you were

23 receiving free water for Johnson Ranch golf club?

24 That's right. So the water was delivered to the

25 Johnson Ranch golf club, which we own and operate, in

Q.

A.
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1 exchange for the service we provided to the Oasis,

because the owner of the Oasis and the owner of the2

3 utility are the same person or the same general

4 There could be -- let's say that they are

5 owned and managed by an organization that's run out of

6 the same office, just to be clear about corporate

7 structure 1

8 Q. Okay . Now, y o u state in your testimony -- and I

9 believe you were discussing this earlier here today

10

11

that other Johnson Utilities customers, you believed

other Johnson Utilities customers were being improperly

12 billed I

13

How many customers, to your knowledge, how many

customers do you believe were being improperly billed?

14 A. The only customers that I can say with some

15

16

credibility that I believe were being improperly billed

were -- that there were two, the San Tan Heights

17 homeowners association and the Johnson Ranch homeowners

18 association

19 Q. Okay .

20 A. because those were the only two I talked to.

21

22

To your knowledge, at any time was Swing First

Golf's customer account closed with -- Swing First

23 Golf's customer account with Johnson Utilities I was that

24 closed at any time?

25 A. This is -- that's a very difficult question to
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1 answer I

2

There were random changes to our account and

billing processes that were completely transparent to

3 u s that we never saw, we never knew aboutI , we were

4 never informed about until we would raise questions.

5 And sometimes we would raise questions and sometimes we

6 wouldn't:.

7 And so, you know, this whole thing that came out

8

9

later about, you know, closing our account and moving

this account and doing that, those were things that the

10 utility did without the knowledge of its customers.

11 MR. METLI:

12

Objection, Your Honor.

responsive to the question. The question was at any

13 time was Swing First Golf's account closed.

14 THE WITNESS: The answer is I don't know.

15 BY Ms. VOHRA:

16 Q. And why don't you know?

17 A. Because the operations of the utility were

18

19

cloaked in an aura of secrecy in such a way that it was

virtually impossible to decipher the activities of

20 Mr. Johnson, Mr. Tompsett, and the people that worked

21 for them.

22 Q.

23

Did you receive bills and pay them from 2006 to

the present time?

24 A. Yes, from 2004 to the present time.

25 Q. Okay . So that would suggest, then, that your
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1 account was not closed, correct?

2 A. Yes, normally it would, you would think that I

3 yes.

4 Q. Do you understand

5

Just a couple more questions.

that there are tariffs that govern what a utility can

6 charge for water, effluent, and also CAP water?

7 A. I do now. I didn't know that years ago.

8 Q. Okay . And if a customer is provided CAP water,

9 that customer should be charged the tariff rate for CAP

10 water, correct?

11 A. That's right.

12 MS. VOHRA: Thank you, Your Honor. That's all

13 the questions I have.

14 ALJ WOLFE: Okay . Mr. Crockett or Mr. MelliI

15

16

would you like to star t your cross-examination, or would

you rather wait until at tar a lunch break?

17 MR. METLI : We will go at tar lunch.

18 ALJ WOLFE: W e will take a break for lunch now

19 until 12:30.

20 (A recess ensued from 11:14 a.m. t o 12:38 p.m.)

21 ALJ WOLFE:

22

Let's go back on the record.

Mr. Melli, do you have questions for this

23 witness?

24 MR. METLI: I do, Your Honor. Thank you .

25
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1 CROSS-EXAMINATION

2 BY MR. METLI :

3 Q. Good afternoon, Mr. Ashton.

4 A. Good at ternoon.

5 Q.

6

I think you previously testified in today's

proceeding that this is the first time you are

7 testifying in this case in front of an Arizona

8 Corporation Commission, is that correct?

9 A.

10 Q. And I know, sir, that you reside in Paris. Have

11

12

you been listening to the proceedings or any par t of the

proceedings in this case while you were in --

13 A. Yes.

14 Q. home ?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. I just want to talk a little bit about your

17 Based on your

18

education and background just briefly.

testimony, you indicated you have undergraduate degrees

19 in international relations and Chinese I i s that correct?

20 A. Yes.

21 Q.

22

I think you also indicated that you have a

master's degree in business administration?

23 Yes.

24 Q with respect to that, really as par t of your

25 either undergraduate or graduate school curriculums, did

A.
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1 you have an opportunity to take any business law

2 courses?

3 A. No.

4 Q As par t of your undergraduate or graduate

5

Okay.

school curriculums did you take any courses on business

6 contracts, do you recall?

7 A. Not any courses that were dedicated to business

8 contracts; although, that's mostly all I do in my work

9 today and over the last five or ten years, is, you know,

10 negotiate and write or and/or approve business

11

12 Q. Okay .

13

And going back to your schooling, did you

have an an opportunity to take any courses in golf

14 course management?

15 A. no.

16 Q. And this is an aside. Did they offer courses in

17 golf course management?

18 I don't know. I never tried. I never looked.

19 Q. In your undergraduate or graduate school

20 curriculums did you have an opportunity to take any

21 courses on public utilities?

22 A. No. And if I did, do you think I would have

23 taken one?

24 Strike that question.

25 Did you take any courses on water conservation

A.
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1

2

or water policy?

No, sir.A.

3 Q. Okay . What about environmental law, did you

4 have an opportunity to take any courses on that I

5 environmental law?

6 A. No.

7 Q. Do you currently have any expertise on

8 engineering or operation of wastewater systems?

9 A. No .

10 Q. Are you an engineer?

11 A. No .

12 Q No? Do you have any expertise on engineering or

13 operating effluent or CAP water delivery systems?

14 A. No .

15 Q. no, okay. I want to ask you a few questions now

16 about Swing First Golf. Could you just -- what is Swing

17 First Golf?

18 A. Swing First Golf is the organization that owns I

19 is the LLC that owns the Golf Club at Johnson Ranch.

20 Q. Okay .

21

And I think you testified to this, but do

you recall, when did Swing First Golf acquire the Golf

Club at Johnson Ranch?22

23 A. In early November 2004

24 Q. Okay . And I think you testified to this, there

25 were 15 members of Swing First Golf, correct?
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1 A. Yes, more o r less. I mean there could be 16 I

2 1 7 I don't have the exact list i n front o f me.I

3 Q. Clarie y for the record. When you say members I

4 you are talking about individuals who are, have an

5 ownership interest in Swing First Golf, LLC, not members

6 of the golf course?

7 That's right.

8 Q. Okay . And I think you also testified that you

9 are the managing member of Swing First Golf?

10 That's right.

11 Q.

12

And as a managing member, could you just briefly

describe some of your job duties.

13 A.

14

15

I think the primary role there is that from an

overall operation standpoint, I am both responsible for

the performance of the operation and financially liable

16 for that performance. And, you know, the manager of the

17 course is someone who I hired who essentially works, he

18 works for all the members.

19

20

But I am the only person, I

am the only member that takes an active operating

interest in the operation. And that was always expected

21 to be par t of the way Swing First operates.

22 Q. And one of these active operating interests I

23

24

would that be running the golf course itself?

I don't personally run the golf course from aA.

25 day-to-day perspective. I have overall financial

A.

A.
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1 oversight, and when there are broad issues that need to

2 be addressed, I work with the golf course manager to

3 make sure that they are addressed. In an issue like

4 this, for example, that's mostly a financial related

5

6

thing or perhaps related to the law, I deal with those

issues and he is kept aware of them.

7 Okay . And then prior, prior to the time with

8 Swing First Golf, have you run any other golf clubs or

9 golf courses?

10 A. No.

11 Q. I think you testified to this. Swing First Golf

12 i s still a customer of Johnson Utilities, correct?

13 A. Yes.

14 Q.

15

And to your knowledge does Swing First Golf pay

their utility bills to Johnson Utilities on a timely

16 basis?

17 A. Yes.

18 Q. Okay . I want to just briefly ask you a little

19 bit about the entity KDS.

20 A. Uh-huh I

21 Q. What does K -- you are currently employed

22

Okay?

by KDS according to your testimony, correct?

23 A. Yes.

24 Q What does KDS do?

25 A. KDS provides enterprise level sot aware, mostly

Q.
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1 for large corporations that want to manage their

corporate travel and expense processes using software

3 systems rather than manual systems.

4 Q Okay . And what is your position with KDS?

5 A. I am the vice president of business development.

6 Q. And this is in addition to your role with Swing

7 I

8 A. Yes.

9 Q.

10

Okay. Could you just briefly describe some of

your responsibilities as vice president of KDS, just

briefly I

12 A. I am responsible for the indirect distribution

13 of our products worldwide, in other words, by par tiers

14 that haven't a vested interest to distribute our

15 products on our behalf.

16 Q. And I think you answered this question, but I am

17 going to ask it again. In your role as vice president

18 of KDS, do you deal with contracts?

19 Yes .

20 Q. Okay . What type of contracts do you deal with?

21 A. Well, they can vary broadly, but probably the

22 most common one i s a contract between u s and a

23 distributor that chooses to distribute our product on

24 our behalf.

25 Q. And generally speaking, are these types of

2

A.
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1 contracts that are executed by both par ties or all

2 par ties?

3 A. Yes.

4 Q. As vice president of KDS, have you had the

5 opportunity to enter into verbal contracts on behalf of

6 KDS?

7 A. No.

8 Q And where i s KDS located?

9 A. The headquarters is in Paris

10 Q. And that's where you live, correct?

I live in the south of France.A. No .

12 Q. And how long have you been with KDS?

13 A.

Okay.

A little over a year.

14 Q. And is that when you moved to France, a little

15 over a year ago?

16 A. No. We moved over two years ago » I was not

17 working when we first moved there .

18 Q. And you come back to Arizona from time to time

19 other than testifying at the ACC?

20 A.

21 Q. Okay . Rough estimate, since you have moved to

22 France, approximately how many times have you come from

23 France t o Arizona?

24 A. Probably six.

25

Ironically, our largest par tier

that distributes for us and comprises a significant part
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1

2

3

of our revenue at KDS, they are Nor Rh American

operations for that, par t of their business is based in

Phoenix and that occasionally brings me here.

4 Q Okay . And those times that you are not here I

5 who has the responsibility for running the golf course?

6 A. Jeff Lundgren.

7 Q. Okay .

8 A. He has full responsibility for day-to-day

9 responsibilities.

10 Q.

11

And just briefly, I know you mentioned in your

testimony that you were formerly employed by Reactivity,

12 Inc .

13 A. Yes.

14 Q from 2005 to 2006. Basically what did that

15 company do? Same thing?

16 A. no, it was different. It was software that was

17

18

designed, in the simplest terms that I can explain it

in, it was sot aware that was designed to accelerate the

19 speed of processing of certain types of web-based

20

21

communication language called -- or web-based language

called XML that determines the way website and

22 businesses communicate with one another.

23 Q. And your job responsibility at Reactivity is

24 that of a vice president of business development?

25 A. Yes.
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1 Q. In that role, did you deal with contracts

2 Yes.

3 Q

4

-- in that capacity?

And again, I am going to ask, were these the

5 types of contracts that would typically be signed by all

6 par ties?

7 A.

8

The response I would give you -- because I

understand exactly where you are going here -- that both

9 par ties wanted to sign contracts and believed that, in

10 my role at Reactivity and at KDS, believed that that is

11 an important element of doing business, that that

12 matters I And so, yes, the answer i s the contracts were

13 signed by both par ties.

14 Q. Well, Mr. Ashton, you got me a little nervous

15 there for a second because you have indicated you knew

16 where I was going. I wasn't really sure where I was

17 going myself.

18 A. You will get there.

19 Okay . Thank you .

20 Have you ever entered into verbal contracts on

21 behalf of Reactivity?

22 A. No.

23 Q. And that company was located in California,

24

25 Yes.

A.

A.
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1 Q. Now, did you live in California when you were

2 employed by them?

3 A. No.

4 Q Okay . So you were living in Arizona?

5 A. Yes.

6 Q.

7

8

Sir, in your opinion is managing a golf course

your full-time job or would you consider it a par t-time

job?

9 A. It is not a full-time job, so yes, I would

10 consider it a par t-time job.

11 Q. Okay . Now, getting back to the golf club, and I

12 think we established this, you purchased the Golf Club

13 at Johnson Ranch in the early par t of November of 2004?

14 A. Yes.

15 Q.

16

Did you have the opportunity or, yes, did you

meet with George Johnson prior to the date that you

17 closed on the purchase of the golf course at Johnson

18 Ranch?

19 A. yes.

20 Q.

21

Okay. Did you meet with any other persons at

Johnson Utilities prior to that date you purchased the

22 golf course?

23 A. I believe I met with Mr. Tompsett.

24 Q Mr. Tompsett? Was that the first you met

25 Mr. Johnson?
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1 A . I think so, yes.

2 Clay . What about Mr. Tompsett, was that the

3 first time you had the opportunity to meet Mr. Tompsett?

4 A. Yes it was.I

5 Q. Okay .

6

7

Now, some of the par ties had asked you

some questions regarding the recorded transcript between

yourself and Mr. Larsen. I would like to do that, too.

8 A. Sure .

9 Q. If some of these are a little repetitive, I

10 apologize A

11

I am going to try not to be repetitive, but

I have my outline, and I did want to go through them if

12 that's okay.

13 Okay .

14 MR. METLI : Your Honor, may I approach the

15 witness?

16 ALJ WOLFE: With the transcript?

17 MR U METLI You know, let me lay a foundation

18 I apologize.

19 BY MR. METLI :

20 Q. So the record is clear, you secretly recorded a

21 conversation between yourself and Mr. Larsen on

22 February let, 2008, correct?

23 A. Yes.

24 Q And I think you indicated how you recorded the

25 conversation • You had a recorder in your jacket pocket?

A.

Q.
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1 A. Yes.

2 Q. And this was a f ace-to-f ace meeting?

3 A. Yes.

4 Q. Where did the meeting take place?

5 A. I think it was in a Burger King in Queen Creek,

6 slash, Florence.

7 Q. Okay . And I think anyone who had listened to

8 the tape will appreciate this. Why didn't you have the

9 meeting in like a library?

10 A. Mr. yes

11 Q You know why I am asking that question.

12 A. Yes. I really would have preferred that, but

13 obviously not a library, but at a quiet place. But

14 Mr. Larsen was not comfortable being in a private place.

15 He wanted to be in a public place, and he stated that.

Because it was difficult to hear over all the16 Q.

17 music.

18 A. Yes it was.I

19 Q. And approximately what time of the day did that

20 take place?

21 A. I think it was at 7:00 in the morning it

22 star Ted, probably lasted about an hour.

23 Q And if you recall, who requested the meeting?

I think I did.24 A. I don't really recall, but I

25 think it was me.
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1 Q. Okay . And was a cassette tape made or was a

2 disk made?

3 A. I t was a hard disk in the recorder, so there is

4 no tape to speak of.

hard disk in it.

It just was a recorder that had a

5

6 Q. Okay . And does that recorder and the transcript

7 and the conversation still exist?

8 A. I believe so. I have not done anything with it.

9 And I think when it was admitted into evidence itI

10 became very important that it not get distributed

11 elsewhere I

12

13

So to be honest, I think Mr. Marks, you may have

a comment on that if it is important to clarify y where it

14

15 Q. N o , no, no. I was

16

Just currently do you know.

going to say, do you know where it is right now?

17 A. no.

18 Q. Okay . So it is not in your possession?

19 A. no.

20 Q. There was some discussion earlier today

21

22

Okay.

about SFG filing a complaint against Johnson Utilities.

And do you recall when that complaint was filed?

23 A. Well, the informal complaint was filed sometime

24 in November 2007, and the formal complaint, I believe l

25 was filed at the end of January 2008.
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1 Q. So the formal complaint was filed a day or so

2 prior to the conversation between you and Mr. Larsen, do

3 you recall?

4 A. I don't recall. But it is a matter of record,

5 and I -- you know, the record would speak for itself.

6 But I really don't remember if it was right before or

7 right of tee the conversation with Mr. Larsen.

8 Q. Do you recall filing an amended complaint in

9 that docket?

10 A. Yes.

11

I think of tar they flooded the golf course

we filed an amended complaint, if I remember right. A

12 lot of this is legal stuff that I don't really -- I am

13 not really an expel t, but I believe that's what

14 happened I

15 Q. No.

16 aware of the dates.

And I am just asking you whether you are

And i f you are not, I mean that's

17 fine .

18 A. Okay .

19 Q. Do you recall when that happened? I am sorry.

20 A. No. But it would have been, if my memory serves

21

22

correctly and it was filed at tar they flooded the golf

course, then it would have been probably sometime in

23 March of '08.

24 Q. I think you answered this question. Mr. Larsen

25 didn't give you permission to record that conversation,
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1 i s that correct?

2 A. Absolutely not.

3 Q. Okay . I don't know if do you know this. Do you

4 know whether Mr. Larsen suspected that he was being

5 recorded?

6 A. He absolutely did suspect that.

7 Q. Okay .

8 A. He asked about it twice.

9 Q. And you are aware that subsequently your

10 attorney disclosed a copy of the transcript to the

11 par ties? Were you aware of that?

12 A. when he did that, yes.

13 Q. When he did that. Do you recall the date when

14 that occurred?

15 I think it was at the beginning of April this

16 year .

17 Q. Subject to check, sir, could it have been

18 Saturday, April 25th?

19 A. It was a Saturday, so, yes.

20 Q. Subject to check?

21 A. Yes.

22 Q. And did you make the decision at that time

23 disclose that tape?

24 I think the decision was made right at that

25 time, that day, the day before, yes.

A.

A.

ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC I
www.az-reporting.com

(602) 274-9944

Phoenix, AZ



WS-02987A-08-0_80 VOL. v 09/24/2009
606

1 Q.

2

I think you answered this question, why you

waited until April 25th, 2009, and I think you answered

3 you tried to hold out as long as possible.

4 A. Uh- huh .

5 Q. I s that correct?

6 A. Yes.

7 Q I think you answered this question, too.

8

9

going through, so I apologize.

That's all right.A.

10 Q. You were asked why you made the tape. And I

11 think you answered that question, so I won't ask you

12 that again. But, Mr. Ashton, do you routinely tape

13 conversations like this with people?

14 A. no.

15 Q. Okay . So this was a -- have you previously

16 recorded any other conversations other than the one on

17 February let, 2008, with anyone?

18 A. No.

19 Q. S o this was a one-time event?

20 A. Yes it was.I

21 Q.

22

Did you think that the information that was

contained on the tape would help you in your complaint

23 case?

24 A. I hoped it would.

25 Q Okay . And that's the reason, one of the reasons
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1 why you did it, correct?

2 A. Yes.

3

4

Prior to your disclosing the transcript in

April of 2009, did you at any time tell Mr. Larsen that

5 you had secretly recorded that conversation?

6 N o I no, I didn't:.

7 Q. Okay . Why didn't you tell Mr. Larsen that you

8 had recorded it?

9 A. I think there are probably two main reasons.

10 One I had been -- Mr. Larsen had been forbidden to haveI

11 any contact with me. And I was in Europe, so there was

12 n o real way to communicate with him .

13 The second is that until the very time this was

14 released, I really did not want to use it at allI

15

16

because I was very concerned about what it would do to

him and his financial stability or his career, his life.

17 Q. Okay . I want to -- we have prepared a redacted

18 exhibit of that conversation that day, and I would like

19 to introduce it into evidence. So I would like you to

20 look at that first.

21 A. Okay .

22 MR. METLI : Your Honor, may I approach the

23 witness?

24 ALJ WOLFE: Yes.

25 THE WITNESS: The redacted version is much

A .

Q.
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1 thinner than the regular version.

2 BY MR. METLI :

3 Q. Mr. Ashton, I have handed you what I have

4 previously marked as Exhibit A-18. Do you have that in

5 front of you?

6 A. Yes.

7 Q. Can you identify that document?

8 A.

9 Q.

I am sorry?

Can you identify that document?

10 A. I t i s a much smaller version o f the full

conversation with Mr. Larsen.

12 Q But you agree with me in looking through it it

13 appears to be a redacted version of that transcript?

14 A. Yes, redacted, yes.

15 Q Okay . I would like you to turn to page 6.

16 A. I am there.

17 Q. Okay . And I made it very easy.

18 A. Yes, thank you. Just pick the white between the

19 black.

20 Q. And,

21 Mr. Pozefsky, Mr.

and I think you went through this with

Larsen had asked you: In your

22 opinion -- in my opinion -- excuse me -- you are not

23 recording me or anything, are you?

24 And your response was: No, come on.

25 And I think you testified that you weren't being
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1 truthful with Mr. Larsen regarding that statement, is

2 that correct?

3 A. Yes.

4 Q To me that seemed like an unusual question to

5 ask. Why do you think Mr. Larsen asked you that

6 question?

7 A. Are you asking for my opinion?

8 Q. of course. I wouldn't want to be objected to.

9 A. Thank you .

10 Mr. Marks, I would ask you to please object when

11 I give my response

12 In my opinion, working for Mr. Johnson is such

13 a harrowing experience that Mr. Larsen is like a child

14 I

15

16

who has been beaten basically every day for ten years

and you become paranoid of any activity that anyone

might involve you in that doesn't involve the express

17 approval of Mr. Johnson.

18 Q. To your knowledge, did Mr. Larsen have any

19 reason not t o trust you?

20 A. Well, I think that's a difficult question, in

21 that when you get to know a person, you know, your trust

22 level rises and f alls based on the way you interact with

23 one another.

24 Clearly Mr. Larsen felt for the most par t he

25 could trust me because he was there having that
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1

2

conversation about things that could cost him his job,

but clearly he had some doubts because he posed those

3 questions during the course of this conversation.

4 Q. And you may have answered this question. At

5 that point, February of 2008, how long had you known

6 Mr. Larsen?

7 A. I a

8

Three little over three years .

Did you -- do you consider him a friend of

9 yours?

10 A. I don't -- I did at the time, yes. But the

11 circumstances in which we found ourselves had created a

12

13 friendly relationship

situation where it was really impossible to have a

Yes, so it was impossible to

14 have a really friendly relationship based on what was

15 happening at the time.

16 Q. Now, was that a choice that you made?

17 A. No, it was a choice that Mr. Johnson made.

18 Q. Mr. Johnson made the choice of you not being

19 friends with Mr. Larsen?

20 A. Yes. Mr. Johnson and Mr. Tompsett continuously,

21

22

through their own management error ts, put Mr. Larsen in

a position where he was forced to act illegally. And

23 when I had -- and things were fine between Mr. Larsen

24 and I until I became aware that those actions were

25 illegal U And then I started putting pressure on

Q.
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1

2

Mr. Larsen to stop the malfeasance that was so clear.

And he knew that he was powerless to do that without the

3 permission of Mr. Johnson and Mr. Tompsett and he wasn't

4 getting that.

5 Q.

6

7

When you said you put the pressure on

Mr. Larsen, how did you do that?

Well, I simply said Gary, I am aware.A. You don't

8 put pressure on someone to change behavior when you

9 don't understand that their behavior is wrong. And once

10 I became aware that the behavior was wrong and

11

12

Mr. Larsen was the mouthpiece for the organization, I

began to communicate with him in a way saying Gary, can

13 you stop this, this malfeasance. I mean Mr. Tompsett

14 knows that I did the same thing with him but to a lesser

15 extent, and it never stopped.

16 Q. So when you just testified that you put pressure

17 on him, did you threaten him at all?

18 A. Absolutely not.

19 Q. So you have never threatened Mr. Larsen?

20 A. Certainly not that I can recall. That sort o f

21 stuff would never work with him.

22 Q I am going to ask you to turn to page 22, lines

23 21 through 23. Let me know when you are there.

24 Okay .

25 Q. And again Mr. Larsen asks you the question: Are

A.
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1 you  record ing  me? Your response was : No,  dude .

2 D o  y o u  s e e  t ha t ?

3 Yes.

4 A n d  a g a i n  y o u  a r e n ' t  b e i n g  t r u t h f u l  t o

Mr. Larsen in that instance, correct?

Q

5

6 A. Yes that's correct.I

7 Okay . C o u l d  y o u  n e x t  t u r n  t o  p a g e ,  g o  b a c k  a n d

8 t u r n  t o  p a g e  1 3 .

9 A. Okay .

10 Q. You ' re

11

I f  y o u  l o o k  a t  l i n e  6 ,  M r .  L a r s e n  s a y s :

t r y i n g  t o  b l a c k m a i l  m e . Do you see that?

12 A. Yes.

13 Q.

14

D o  y o u  k n o w  w h y  M r .  L a r s e n  m i g h t  t h i n k  t h a t  y o u

w e r e  t r y i n g  t o  b l a c k m a i l  h i m ?

15 A.

16

Because he knew I had a copy of that document

and he was afraid that it would be made public and that

17 i t  w o u l d  c o s t  h i m  h i s  j o b . B y  t h e  f  a c t  t h a t  I  p o s s e s s e d

18 a document that h e had sent me, h e  f e l t  h e  w a s  a t  r i s k

19 o f  b e i n g  b l a c k m a i l e d I didn't have t o say or d o

20 anything .

21 Q. D i d  M r .  L a r s e n  h a v e  a n y t h i n g  t o  w o r r y  a b o u t

22 r e g a r d i n g  h a v i n g  t h a t  i n v o i c e ?

23 A. C l e a r l y  h e  d i d .

24 Q W e r e  y o u  t r y i n g  t o  b l a c k m a i l  M r .  L a r s e n ?

25 A. No.

A .

Q.
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1 Q And you -- I know you are not a lawyer, but do

2 you know what blackmail is? I mean do you know the

3 elements o f blackmail?

4 A. Well the termI means I in my world the term means

5

6

using something as leverage to get something from

But the connotation is alwayssomeone else a s leverage.

7 based on that you are trying to get someone to do

8

9

something dishonest or to keep them from doing something

right by, you know, using this leverage. And that i s

10 car mainly not what I was attempting to achieve.

11 Q. Would you agree with me that your possession of

12 the invoice gave you leverage over Mr. Larsen?

Yes i t did.13 A. I

14 Q. Okay .

15

You would agree with me that you were

using that leverage t o get information from Mr. Larsen?

16 A. I would agree that Mr. Larsen met with me

17 because he wanted to have a conversation about that

18 document I

19 Q Okay . Is it your testimony you were not using

20 that invoice as leverage to get information from

21 Mr. Larsen?

22 A.

23

I think, you know, so I have an issue with your

question, the way it is phrased, because you are trying

24 to suggest that my sole purpose

25 Q Well
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1 A. was t o blackmail Mr. Larsen.

2 Q. let me interrupt you. You are represented by

3 counsel I

4 counsel would her mainly interject an objection.

and if I do ask you an improper question, your

If you

5 didn't understand the question, I can rephrase it.

6 A. Okay .

7 Q. Okay .

Could you do that, please.

Given the f act you had possession of the

8 invoice, didn't you use that f act to force Mr. Larsen

9 to, first of all, meet with you?

10 A. No, I don't believe so, no.

11 Didn't you use the leverage of having

that invoice t o obtain information from Mr. Larsen that

Q- Okay .

12

13 would benefit you?

14 A. I think the record shows that the answer nois ,

15

16

because af tar I repeatedly assured Mr. Larsen that I

would not use that document, he continued to give me

17 information that was relevant to the case . O r should I

18

19

say he continued to be honest with me about the way the

utility conducts its business.

20 Q. So your testimony was you repeatedly assured

21 Mr. Larsen that you wouldn't use that invoice I is that

22

23 A. I believe it is a matter of record that there

24 were several occasions where I told him that I would not

25 use it.
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1 Q. And that turned out to be not true, is that

2

3 A. That's correct.

4 Q. I am going to ask you to turn to page 15. Let

5 me know when you are there .

6 A. I am there.

7 Q. Okay . You state: If you're honest with me, if

8 you continue be honest withto me, I can promise you

9 you are not -- they are never going to see that

10 document.

11 Did you say that?

Yes I did.12 I

13 Q. And you just testified that Mr. Larsen had been

14 honest with you, correct?

15 Up to that point, yes, I believe anyway.

16 And just so we are clear, when you say see that

17 document I what document are we referring to? The

18 invoice?

19 A. Yes the document that's in Exhibit 30 SF-30.I I

20 Q. So in f act you were promising Mr. Larsen if he

21 was honest with you, you wouldn't disclose the invoice,

22 correct?

23 A. Yes that's correct.I

24 Q. , sir?

25 MR I MARKS :

Isn't that the very nature of blackmail

Objection. If you need a basis for

A.

A.

Q.

ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC |

www.az-reporting.com

(602) 274-9944
Phoenix, AZ



WS-02987A-08-0180 VOL. V 09/24/2009
616

1

2 here .

it, Your Honor, he is asking for a legal conclusion

I was patient with him when he asked to a

3 layperson what blackmail is, but now he is asking for

4 the very nature of what blackmail is.

5 MR. METLI: Well Mr. Ashton described hisI

6 opinion of blackmail and he laid out his lay opinion.

7 Maybe I should ask him in his lay opinion.

8 ALJ WOLFE: That might be more appropriate.

9 MR. METLI: I think I will.

10 BY MR. METLI :

Q

12

Mr. Ashton, in your lay opinion, doesn't that

constitute the very nature of blackmail as you have

13 described it?

14 A. No.

15 Q. Okay . But isn't that what you did to him?

16 A. What did I do to him? Isn't what what?

17 Q. Didn't you try to force him to be honest by

18 leveraging the f act that you had the invoice?

19 A. I think the record here speaks for itself that

20

21 I had been told on many occasions

22

my goal was for the organization to be honest about its

business dealings.

that they would in f act not be honest about their

23 And my goal originally with

24

business dealings.

Mr. Johnson, which I was not going to get, and then with

25 Mr. Tompsett, which I was not going to get, and then
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1

2

with Mr. Larsen was to have clarity around their

business dealings so we could resolve the dispute and I

3 could make sure that I would be dealt with honestly by

4 the organization from that point forward.

5 Q. Well, going back -- well, then, let's go back to

6 page 1 5 when you state if you are honest with me, if you

7 continue t o b e honest with me.

8

Are you saying what you

were really looking for was not Mr. Larsen being honest

9 with you but Johnson Utilities to be honest with you?

10 A. Well, I think, you know, you are analyzing words

11 that are said. Words are incredibly important, I am not

12 discounting that, but Mr. Larsen was the utility. And I

13 was looking for honesty from the utility. I a m sure,

14 sir, you can imagine that I wasn't really concerned at

15 the highest level about Mr. Larsen's opinions about

16 stuff a s much as I wanted honest behavior from the

17 And to that point, I continued to not receive

18

19

20

So in response to my question, sir, then, when

you say if you are honest with me, if you continue to be

21 I

22

honest with me, you are talking about Johnson Utilities

you are not talking about Mr. Larsen?

23 A. No, it is not that black and white. So again,

24 Mr. Larsen was a person, is a person. Mr. Larsen also

25 acted in his capacity as the person who ran the utility

Q.
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1 And I

2

in the service area where my golf course is.

expected and was looking for honesty from Mr. Larsen,

3 but also from the utility.

4 Q. And subsequently was Mr. Larsen not honest with

5 you?

6 A. Well, subsequently there was very little

7 dialogue because he had been forbidden to engage in

8 dialogue . He had been forbidden, in other words, to be

9 honest or for thcoming. And therefore, the dialogue more

10 And the shenanigans continued.

11

or less stopped.

So if the dialogue stopped, there was no wayQ.

12 Mr. Larsen could have been dishonest with you, correct?

13 A. There were

14

The dialogue more or less stopped.

occasional periods of short dialogue between him and my

15 But h e had been forbidden, and the non redacted

16

17

manager.

version of this document explains

Objection.MR. METLI:

18 THE WITNESS: explains that. Because h e said

19 it himself.

20 BY MR. METLI :

21 During those times that you had these small

22 meetings with him, was he dishonest with you?

23 A. My manager had those small meetings.

24 Q. Do you know whether during those meetings with

25 his management Mr. Larsen was dishonest with him?
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1 A.

2 depends on who is asking the question.

The utility -- the definition of dishonesty

In my opinion,

3 it is war thy. Was the utility making efforts to resolve

4 the issues of dishonesty that led to this dispute in the

5 first place? And the answer was no. Was Mr. Larsen the

6

7 Q.

8

agent for the utility? And the answer is yes.

So, again, when we are talking about honesty and

dishonesty, you are not talking specifically about

9 Mr. Larsen, you are talking about Johnson Utilities?

10 A. I am not only

11 MR • MARKS : Objection; asked and answered.

12 BY MR. METLI :

13 Q. Can you turn to page 24, please, lines 23 to 24.

14 Mr. Larsen states to you: You're going to promise me

15

16

you're going to destroy it?

Do you see that?

17 A. Yes I do.I

18 Q When he says it, is he talking about the

19 invoice?

20 A. Yes he is.I

21 Q.

22

Could you please read your response star ting on

page 24 and lines 25 through page 25, lines 1 through 4

23 where

24 A . Yes.

it is really lines 2 through 4.

It's in an e-mail, okay? I'll leave it

25 out, okay? You will never see a paper copy.

ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC.

www.az-reporting.com

(602) 274-9944

Phoenix, AZ



WS-02987A-08-0180 VOLI v 09/24/2009
620

1 never send i t t o George, Brian, ever.

2 Q. And that wasn't a truthful statement, was i t ?

3 A. Well, that was a truthful statement in that they

4 have never seen it, they have never seen a paper copy

5 But I really don't think that matters. I mean everyone

6 in this courtroom or in this room understands that, you

7 know, the document did come out.

8

9

And so, you know, ultimately statements made to

give Mr. Larsen comfort that it would not come out,

10 ultimately I was unable to hold to that commitment;

11

12

although, as I think we have clearly established, I did

everything that I could to do that. And when

13 Mr. Tompsett was dishonest on the stand under oath, I

14 felt that I had no choice but to release it, much to my

15 chagrin, and I can assure you of that .

16 Q. Mr. Larsen

17 says to you:

18 You indicate:

19

Continue down to page 25, line 5.

And you you will never give it to anybody?

I will never give it to anybody.

And again I won't belabor the point, but because

20

21

we are having a discussion about it, again, you weren't

being truthful with Mr. Larsen?

22 A. Again, you know, we are looking at things in a

23 vacuum 1 My intent when I was making these statements

24 was to never give it to anyone. As you can imagine, one

25 year later I was dumbfounded to listen from my house in
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1

2

Nice when Mr. Tompsett got up on the stand and made

bald-f aced lies about the way he and Mr. Johnson run

3 their operation.

4 MR. METLI:

I had not expected that.

One second, Your Honor.

5 (Brief pause.)

6 BY MR. METLI :

7 Q.

8

9

Fur thee down on page 26, star ting on line 10, go

down a little fur thee to lines 11 through 21, you

Maybe I'mindicated, actually it is down on line 17:

10

11

doing you a disservice here by not making you feel safe.

Do you recall what you meant by that?

12 A. Sure . I meant what I wrote or what excuse

13 me -- what is said in line 18 and 19 which is I don'tI

14 want you to get -- be exposed.

15

The last thing I wanted

was for Gary Larsen, the only man at the utility that

16

17

18

has demonstrated proper honesty in his business

dealings, to be exposed and to lose his job over that

And I think that is a tragedy.honesty I

19 Q. So you would agree that Mr. Larsen has

20 demonstrated honesty to you?

21 A. And

22

23 Q.

24 Mr. Larsen says:

Generally, yes, more so than anyone else.

when you are a customer, you grasp onto that.

Going back to page 25, lines 12 through 25,

That piece of paper ain't going to do

25 you no good. And you agree, is that correct?
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1 A. You said line 25?

2 Q Well, star ting on line 12 .

3 A. Oh, line 12. Yes, I agreed. Again, I am sure

4 you can understand, sir, that, you know, I didn't know

5 what was coming and what was going to happen. This is a

6 process I am sure you have been through many times; I

7 have never been through it. I have never dealt with an

8 organization that conducts its business this way. I can

9 honestly say that I was very naive as to what was about

10

11 Q. I think you testified to this. Swing First Golf

12 ultimately received a copy of that invoice?

13 A. You mean like a real invoice rather than a f eke

14 one? Is that what you are asking?

15 Q. Did Swing First Golf receive an invoice for the

16 water that was represented in the invoice we are talking

17 about here?

18 A. Yes. Mr. Larsen sent m e the f eke one.

19 Exhibit 30.

20 Q. No . I am saying did you -- you paid the invoice

21 that they are talking about in this transcript, or did

22 you receive another invoice?

23 A. The invoice we are talking about in this

24 transcript is the phony invoice that Mr. Johnson and

25 Mr. Tompsett had sent through the billing department to
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1 Mr. Larsen.

2 Q. Well, that wasn't my question, My question

3 was :

4

5

Did you receive an invoice for the water that was

represented on that invoice subsequently to that invoice

being prepared?

6 I believe we did, yes.

7

8

And did you pay that invoice?

I believe we did, yes.

9 Q.

10

Thank you.

I am going to direct your attention to what your

11 counsel has previously marked as Exhibit SF-30.

12 A. Okay . I have it.

13 MR • MARKS : And has been admitted as SF-30.

14 BY MR. METLI :

15 Q Do you have that?

16 A. Yes I do.I

17 Q. Can you identify that document?

18 A. well, there are four pages. The

19 first page is a letter from Craig Marks to your firm, I

20 believe, with information about the invoice, the phony

21 or f aka invoice that Mr. Larsen did send to me in

22 November of 2007.

23 Q And SF-30 appears to be a supplemental

24 response to a data request issued by Johnson Utilities

25 Do you see that on page 2?

A.

A.

Q.
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1 A. Yes .

2 Q.

3

4

Can you read the question.

Please provide copies of all written

correspondence between David Ashton or any other person

5

6

representing Swing First Golf, LLC, and Johnson

Utilities from January let, 2004 through the date of

7

8 Q

9

these data requests.

And it appears that the attached e-mail and the

invoice is responsive to that question. Would you agree

10 with me?

11 A. Yes it is.I

12 Q. And according to the e-mail from Mr. Larsen, you

13 received the invoice on November 21st 2007I , is that

14 correct?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. Do you know when the data request 2.15 was sent

17 to Swing First Golf?

18 A. No.

19 MR. METLI : Your Honor, may I approach?

20 ALJ WOLFE: Yes. I s this A-19?

21 MR. IVIETLI: That would be A-19

22 BY MR. IVIETLI :

23 Q. Do you have that, Mr. Ashton?

24 Yes.

25 Q. Have you looked at that?

A.

A.
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1 A. Yes.

2 Q.

I mean I have looked at the first page

I would direct your attention to what I have

3 marked as Exhibit A-19. Can you please identify the

4 title of the cover letter on the R-E?

5 A. Johnson Utility second set of data requests to

6 Swing First Golf in Docket XYZ.

7 Q. And what date was that letter sent?

8 October 23rd, 2008.

9 Q Can you turn to JU 2.12 in that document .

10 A. JU 2.12, yes.

11 Q. Is that the same question that is referenced in

12 SF-30?

13 A. Yes it is.I

14 MR I MARKS : Excuse me U I don't believe it is

15 the same question

16 THE WITNESS: Oh, it is not.

17 MR I MARKS : 2 I12 • 2.15 is what you want.

18 MR. METLI: Oh • Yes I do stand corrected,I

19 2 U 15 » I apologize.

20 THE WITNESS: 2 • 15I

21 MR. IVIETLI:

22 THE WITNESS:

Put my glasses on.

Thank you.

23 BY MR. METLI :

24 Q To your knowledge, when this document was

25 originally sent out to you on October 23rd, 2008, were

A.
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1 you responsive to this data request? Did you send

2 documents t o Johnson Utilities?

3 A. What is the definition of responsive?

4 Q. Did you answer the question as asked?

5 A. No.

6 Q. Okay.

I f ailed to not send the document from

How did you not answer the question?

7 A.

8 Mr. Larsen - - excuse me l I f ailed to send the document

9 from Mr. Larsen.

10 Q Was that a decision that you made?

11 A. Yes it was.I

12 Q. So you disregarded a discovery request in this

13 docket?

14 A. Yes I did.I why do you think I did that, sir?

15 Q. Mr. Ashton, how about I will ask the questions.

16 A. I am happy to answer them.

17 Q.

18 A.

19 Q.

20

Thank you.

I think you know why.

So when you were doing your due diligence in

October of 2008, gathering your documents, you

21 deliberately withheld this one, is that correct?

22 A. Yes I did.I

23 Q. Okay . Did your attorney know you withheld this

24 one?

25 A. No.
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1 Q. S o  y o u  d i d n ' t  e v e n  t e l l  y o u r  a t t o r n e y ?

2 No. B e c a u s e  I  p r o m i s e d  M r .  L a r s e n  t h a t  I

3 w o u l d n ' t ,  a n d  I  n e v e r  t h o u g h t  t h a t  e v e r y b o d y  e l s e

4 excuse me ¢ I  p r o m i s e d  M r .  L a r s e n  t h a t  I  w o u l d n ' t .

5 Q Yo u  p r o m i s e d  M r .  L a r s e n  t ha t  y o u  w o u l d n ' t ?

6 A. That I wouldn't.

7 Q. D i d  y o u  f u l f i l l  t h a t  p r o m i s e ?

8 A. No.

9 MR. METLI : Thank you .

10 Your  Hono r ,  g i ve  me  one  second . I  a m  t r y i n g

11

12

t o - - some of these were asked today so I just want to

make sure I don't continue to duplicate.

13 ALJ WOLFE: Sure .

14 BY MR. IVIETLI :

15 Q. Can you turn back, and we are going back to

16 E x h i b i t  A - 1 8 ,  t h a t ' s  t h e  t r a n s c r i p t  e x c e r p t .

17 A. Oh I Okay .

18 On

19

G o i n g  b a c k  t o  p a g e  1 3 ,  I  h a d  a  q u e s t i o n .

l i n e  7 ,  a n d  I  w i l l  - -  g o i n g ,  t h i s  i s  M r .  L a r s e n

20 speaking :

21 G o i n g  i n  f r o n t  o f  t h e  C o m m i s s i o n  a n d  s a y i n g  w h a t

22 y o u  w a n t  m e  t o  s a y . A n d  t h a t  a i n ' t  r i g h t .

23 Yo ur  r e s p o ns e  i s : No . I  a m  n o t  t r y i n g  t o  d o

24 that, Gary.

25 And  Mr .  La rsen responded : T h a t ' s  e x a c t l y  w h a t

A.
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1 you're doing.

2 why do you think Mr. Larsen believed that you

3 were attempting to put words in his mouth in front of

the Commission?4

5 MR. MARKS: Objection. That'S not

6 ALJ WOLFE: Sustained.

7 MR • MARKS : Thank you .

8 BY MR. METLI :

9 Q. Do you know what Mr. Larsen was talking about

10 star ting on line 7 through line 9?

11 A. Yes.

12 Q. What was he talking about?

13 A. That he didn't want to have to go in front of

14 the Commission and tell the truth about Johnson

15 Utilities' operations.

16 Q. So you putting words in his mouth meant him

17 telling the truth?

18 A. Well, I think we have established that, you

19 know, I am not going to talk to you about putting words

20 in his mouth because I didn't do that. I wanted

21 Mr. Larsen to be truthful. In the nor redacted version,

22 which you don't feel is necessary to use, he is very

23 clear about the f act that he would not tell the truth.

24 MR. IVIETLI: Objection, Your Honor. Anything

25 associated with the nor redacted version should not be
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1 discussed .

2 MR ¢ MARKS : Your Honor, if he is giving his

3

4

impression of the conversation based on his having been

a par Ty to the conversation, I think that's certainly

5 proper. And Mr. Melli has opened the door by asking

6 this witness what his opinion is of what Mr. Larsen was

7 thinking

8 MR. METLI:

9

My question was asking him exactly

what he was saying in that, in line 7 through 9.

10 MR » MARKS : I don't believe it was. You asked

11 him something about putting words in his mouth. I don't

12 see that anywhere in there.

13 ALJ WOLFE: Regardless, the answer is on the

14 record and it will stay that way.

15 And also, Mr. Metli, it is true, if you do ask

16

17

questions of this witness about this conversation, that

it does open the door.

18 MR. IVIETLI : We are going to leave that.

19 THE WITNESS: Which one?

20 MR. IVIETLI: We are not going to talk about the

21 transcript right now.

22 THE WITNESS: Okay .

23 MR. METLI: I just wanted to ask you some

24 questions on the billing dispute.

25 Your Honor, before I do that I would like toI
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1 move , I believe it Exhibit A-18

2 MR I MARKS : No objection.

3 MR. POZEFSKY: No objection.

4 Ms. MITCHELL: No.

5 ALJ WOLFE: Hearing no objection, A-18 is

6 admitted.

7 (Exhibit no. A-18 was admitted into evidence.)

8 BY MR. METLI:

9 Q. Mr. Ashton, how many accounts does Swing First

10 have with Johnson Utilities?

11 A. I think we have three.

12 Q. Can you identify those?

One is for the water that is delivered to the13 A.

14 lake and that's to the lake on the 18 th hole.I And that

15 is the subject, that account is the subject of this

16 dispute .

17 There are two others, very small accounts. One

18 is for drinking water or water used by humans in the

19 golf course clubhouse, and third is an account for the

20 same type of water used at the maintenance yard or for

21 the agronomy staff.

22 Q. I s there also a n account I for the hole 15

23 restroom?

24 A. Yes. Well, I believe so, yes. I mean water i s

25 delivered there. So if there is a four Rh, then that's
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1 what i t would be for.

2 Q.

3

And you have testified that with respect to

those accounts, you have no billing dispute with Johnson

4 Utilities?

5 A. Not that I have ever been aware of, no. The

6 accounts are so small that, you know, I don't think we

7 have had an issue there.

8 Q. I would like now to direct your attention to the

9

10

supplemental rebuttal testimony of Brian Tompsett.

believe it was marked as Exhibit A-6.

11 A. I don't know if I have that .

12 ALJ WOLFE: Let's go off the record and locate

13

14 (Brief pause.)

15 BY MR. METLI :

16 Q. I would like to direct your attention to

17 page 11, star ting at line 7. Are you there?

18 A. Yes.

19 Q. And before I ask you that, have you had an

20 opportunity to review the refiled supplemental rebuttal

21 testimony marked as Exhibit A-6?

22 I believe so.

23 Q. Okay . Star ting on line 7, Mr. Tompsett

24 testifies about an account number there 00119200-01.I

25 A. Yes .
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1 Q.

2 A.

Are you f familiar with that account?

If t1'1at ' s correct then it is the CAP waterI

3 account, yes.

4 Q. Subject to check?

5 A. Sure .

6 Q We are fine.

7 Mr. Tompsett testified that Johnson Utilities

8 provided the account credit of $1,260.43 in September of

9 2007 »

10 A . In December 2007, right.

11 Q. September 2007. Do you dispute that number?

12 A. I don't dispute it, no.

13 Q. And fur thee he goes on, and $43,358.92 in

14 December of 2000. Do you see that?

15 A.

16 Q.

17 A.

I see that, yes, 2007, yes.

Do you dispute that number?

Maybe they should have provided me with a credit

18 of a million. You know, it doesn't these numbers don'tI

19 mean anything because

20 MR. IVIETLI : Objection, Your Honor; move to

21 strike, nonresponsive.

22 ALJ WOLFE: Answer the question that you were

23 asked, please.

24 THE WITNESS: Okay . I don't know what these

25 numbers mean , because Mr. Tompsett and Mr. Johnson
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1

2

continuously created, continuously billed us illegally

and created phony balances and then tried to credit back

3 things And as a customer, I didn't really have clarity

4 a s to what they were trying t o achieve and what was real

5 and what was not. And I am quite car rain, Mr. Metli,

6 that you understand why.

7 BY MR. METLI :

8 Q.

9

So in response to my question, sir, the

$43,358.92 that was testified to being credited in

10

11

December of 2007, sir, is your response you don't know?

I don't know the meaning of that.A. You are

12 asking me if that's a legitimate credit.

13 Q. N o

14 A. Okay . Then what?

15 Q I am asking you is this an accurate statement

16 that the account number 00119200-01 was provided an

17 account credit of $43,358.92 in December 2007. That | s

18 his testimony. Do you agree with that or do you not

19 know if that's true or not?

20 A. I am assuming that there is an account, CAP

21

22

water, that you have established with that number on

line 7, and that Johnson Utilities provided a credit of

23

24

those amounts on the dates that they provided against a

basis of money owed that is completely f fantastical and

25 based on whimsy.
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Q.

2 case,

We understand that's your allegation in this

And we understand that that's an allegation

3 in the complaint case. And we will proceed on with

4

5

those cases, but can we focus on my questions, please.

I can't give you an answer about legitimacy ofA.

6 this credit or not because, you know, I can't speak to

7 the legitimacy.

8 Okay . Well let's continue and we will takeI

9 them one a t a time .

10 A. Okay .

11 Q. On account number 00119200-02, are you f familiar

12 with that account?

13 A. Line 9 ?

14 Q. Correct I

15 A. Not really.

Line 7 i s the CAP water account.

I mean look a t this line 7 CAPI I

16 water account. Okay?

17 00119200-01 CAP water.I Credit provided to those

18 accounts in December 2007. Line 9 00119200-02 CAPI I

19 water, credit provided December 2007.

20 Are you implying, suggesting, Mr. Melli, that I

21 had two CAP water accounts provided by Johnson Utilities

22 that were both credited in December 2007? And are you

23 suggesting that that's a legitimate business practice,

24 two accounts for CAP water?

25 Q. Let me ask you

Q.

ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
www.az-reporting.com

(602) 274-9944

Phoenix, AZ



WS-02987A-08-0180 VOL I v 09/24/2009
635

1 A. How am I supposed to follow that?

2 Q. Mr. Ashton, let me ask you this

3 MR I MARKS : Mr. Ashton, as your counsel I would

4 ask you just to confine yourself to answering questions

5 and not asking questions.

6 THE WITNESS : Thank you .

7 MR Q MARKS : We will get done a little quicker.

8 BY MR. IVIETLI :

9 Q Putting aside the parenthetical, sir, are you

10 f familiar with that account number on line 9 I

11 00119200-02, does that mean anything to you?

12 A. I t must means that I had two CAP water accounts

13 according to Johnson Utilities in December of 2007.

14 Q Is that your testimony, sir?

15 A. I can't say that I was previously aware of that .

16 Q.

17 A.

Is that your testimony, sir?

Yes it is, sir.I

18 Q. Okay . And Mr. Tompsett testified that he

19 provided a credit of $8,382.34 in December 2007?

20 A. Mr. Tompsett did testis y to that, yes.

21 Q. Okay .

22 A.

Do you dispute that?

I can't dispute something that I have no clear

23 understanding of.

24 Q Okay . And the credits applied to the SFG CAP

25 account totaled $53,00l.69. Do you see his testimony
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1 there?

2 A. Yes I do.I

3 Q. Do you dispute that?

4 A. No, I do not.

5 Q. Let's move on. Line 12, account number

6 00120362-01, do you see that account there?

Yes I do.7 I

8 Q. Mr. Tompsett testified that Johnson Utilities

9

10

provided account credits of $1,938.86 in September of

2007 and $45,892.94 in December 2007, totaling

11 $47,831.80. Do you see that testimony, sir?

Yes I do.12 A. l

13 Q. Do you dispute that?

14 A. No, I do not dispute it.

15 Okay.

SFG CAP and effluent accounts total a little more than

Q. And finally he states credits applied to

16

17 $100,000. Do you see that, sir?

18 A. Yes.

19 Q.

20 A.

Do you dispute that?

I dispute the legitimacy of those credits, yes I

21 I do.

22 Q. Could you please describe the irrigation system

23 that supplies water to the golf course at Johnson Ranch.

24 A. In lay terms, there is a -- there are a set of

25 pipes that one delivers CAP water, another delivers

A.

ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC |
www.az-reporting.com

(602) 274-9944

Phoenix, AZ



WS-02987A-08-0_80 VOL. v 09/24/2009
637

1 effluent t o the course. And the water, when it was

2 delivered, goes into our lake o n the l 8t1'1 hole.

3 Q. A n d I a m s o r r y , d i d  y o u s a y t h e r e w e r e t w o

4 separate pipes, two separate systems?

5 A. Yes, there are two separate pipes.

6 Q. O n e f o r  e f f l u e n t , one for CAP?

7 Yes, and perhaps three, because we had two CAP

8 accounts

9 Q. Okay . And all the irrigation water, that goes

10 into the lake?

11 A. T h a t ' s t h e e f f l u e n t a c c o u n t .

12 Q Okay . And if you get CAP water, where would

13 that go?

14 A. Into the lake.

15 Okay . A n d  t h e n -- I a m s o r r y . Were you

16 f i n i s h e d ?

17 A . Yes.

18 Q. O h , o k a y . And then Swing First Golf irrigates

19 the golf course by pumping the water from the lake to

20 t h e c o u r s e ?

21 A. Yes, that's right.

22 Q. Okay . Do the CAP and effluent pipes come into

23 the lake at two different places?

24 A. No. They come out of the same huge pipe in the

25 end .

A.

Q.
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1 Q.

2

3

So are you saying that the CAP and the effluent

come out of the same pipe?

it is just like hot and cold waterA. Well theI

4 can come out of the same, the same tap. But they come

5 from different pipes. The effluent and the CAP can both

6 come out of, they both come out of the same large pipe

7 that is sticking out of the ground and goes into the I

8 feeds into the lake.

9 Q. How are the accounts metered? By the same

10 meter? Separate meters?

11 A. No, there are two separate meters.

12 Q So each meter is attached, I assume, to a

13 different pipe?

14 A. Yes.

15 Q. And then the pipes subsequently merge?

16 A.

17 Q.

They must converge somewhere, yes.

Do you know whether it would be permissible to

18 cross connect an effluent pipe and a CAP pipe?

19 What do you mean by that?

20 Q. Use one for the other?

21 A. I am not sure.

22 Q. No, no.

You mean put them together?

Would it be permissible to use an

23 effluent pipe and run CAP water through it or use a CAP

24 pipe and run effluent through it, do you know?

25 A. Would it be legally permissible?

A.
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1 Q If you know.

2 A. I mean I don't: think I know, but I am sure i t

3 would not be legally permissible. I am not an expert.

4 Q. Okay .

5 A. But I assume it is not legally permissible.

6 I don't know.

7

may not be functionally possible.

Do you know which Johnson UtilityQ. Okay .

8 wastewater treatment plant provides the effluent that

9 supplies SFG's golf course?

10 A. It is the San Tan plant.

11 Q. Do you know whether Johnson Utilities can

12 physically deliver water to your golf course from any

13 other wastewater treatment plant that it owns?

14 A. I don't know. The testimony of the utility has

15 been relatively consistent throughout this process that

16 they cannot.

17 Q. Okay . Do you know the date that effluent was

18 first available to you or your golf course at Johnson

19 Ranch?

20 I don't know the exact date but I think i t wasI

21 in early 2006.

22 Q. Early 2006?

23 A. Yes.

24 Q And when did you purchase the golf course?

25 A. In November 2004.

A.
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1 Q. So from November 2004 through March of 2006, how

2 was your water needs met?

3 A. We received CAP water.

4 Q CAP water? One second.

5 And during that time from 2004 to 2006 when you

6 were receiving CAP water, do you know what rate you were

7 charged for that CAP water?

8 A.

9

10 remember I

I think it was the legal rate of 83 cents, but

to be honest, it has been so long I really can't

I think, yes, I think that's right.

11 The reason I am less than clear i s because we

12 didn't keep a copy of our bil ls, and I requested those

13 from

14 MR. METLI: Objection, Your Honor, unresponsive.

15 THE WITNESS : I already answered the question.

16 MR. METLI : I know, but there is not a question

17 pending, sir.

18 THE WITNESS: Okay .

19 MR. METLI: Your counsel can redirect you.

20 THE WITNESS: Okay .

21 BY MR. METLI :

22 Q. Do you know, sir, that up until March 2006, did

23 other

24

you receive any other water from Johnson Utilities

than CAP water?

25 A. Not that I a m aware of .
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1 Q. You are not aware of whether you received

2 potable water?

3 A. Well, we would have received potable water in

4

5

the golf course, but not in the accounts that are the

subject of this dispute.

6 Q. Okay . And I think you already testified,

7

8

that if the golf course delivered you CAP water, they

would be required to charge their tariffed rate of 83

9 cents, is that correct?

10 A. If who, the utility?

11 Q. If the utility, I apologize.

12 A. Yes, they would.

13 MR 1 METLI One second. Your Honor, can we take

14 a quick break?

15 ALJ WOLFE: Before you finish your questions?

16 MR. METLI: Yes.

17 ALJ WOLFE: How quick? Off the record.

18 MR. IVIETLI: Five minutes.

19 ALJ WOLFE: Okay . We will go ahead and take our

20 afternoon break now and we will come back at 2:05.

21 (A recess ensued from 1:48 p.m. to 2:07 p.m.)

22 ALJ WOLFE: Go back on the record.

23 THE WITNESS:

24

Before we go into questioning

again, can I clarify y a statement I made just right

25 before we let t, right before the break, regarding my
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1 r e s p o n s e  t o  t h e  l a s t  q u e s t i o n  t h a t  M r .  M e t l i  a s k e d ?

2 B e c a u s e  I  t h i n k  I  p e r h a p s  m i s s p o k e  o r  w a s n ' t  v e r y  c l e a r .

3 ALJ WOLFE: Mr. Melli, do you mind if the

4 witness clarifies something that he said?

5 MR. METLI: I  h a v e  n o  o b j e c t i o n  t o  t h a t ,  Y o u r

6 Honor I I  d o n ' t  r e c a l l  w h a t  t h e  q u e s t i o n  w a s .

I don't either, but I am sure h e7 ALJ WOLFE:

8 w i l l  e x p l a i n  i t . G o ahead.

9 THE WITNESS : T he  q ue s t i o n  w a s  - -  w e  c a n  g o  b a c k

10

11

and read it if we need to, but it was something to the

effect of, you know, what was the utility charging

12 b e f o r e  2 0 0 6  o r  s o m e t h i n g  l i k e  t h a t . Do you recall that I

13 Mr. Melli?

14 MR. METLI : W e l l ,  i f  y o u  w o u l d  l i k e ,  I  w a s  g o i n g

15 t o  g o  t h r o ug h  s o m e  o f  t he s e  q ue s t i o ns  a g a i n  s o  m a y b e  w e

16 c a n  c o v e r  i t  o n  m y  c o n t i n u e d

17 THE WITNESS:

18 MR. METLI:

Okay.

A n d  i f  I  d o n ' t ,  h e  c a n  c l a r i f y  y .

19 Does that work?

20 MR. MARKS: That's fine.

21 ALJ WOLFE: Okay . G o  a h e a d ,  M r .  M e t l i .

22 BY MR. METLI :

23 Q.

24

M r .  A s h t o n ,  d o  y o u  k no w  w ha t  t he  t e r m  d ue

d i l i g e nc e  m e a ns  i n  a  b us i ne s s  s e ns e ?

25 A. Yes .
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1 Q. When SFG acquired the golf course at Johnson

2 Ranch, did you do any due diligence regarding that

3 transaction?

4 A. Yes .

5 Q. Please describe to me briefly, you know, what

6

7

types of due diligence you did.

Well, you check out the vendors that you will be

8 doing business with, mostly from a contractual

9 perspective, you know, to see if you are willing to

10 accept those contracts that are in place. And you also

check the equipment, the f abilities, make sure that they

12 are operating properly. Sort of like you would do an

13 Those are the

14

inspection on a home before you buy it.

primary activities involved in due diligence.

15 Q. And in conducting that due diligence do you look

16 how the water was supplied to the golf course for

17 irrigation purposes?

18 A. yes.

19 Q.

20

21

And if you recall, back at that time -- you may

have answered this question -- what type of water did

the golf course receive when you acquired it in 2004?

22 A. At that time only CAP water was available, so

23 CAP water.

24 Q So the golf course did not receive any effluent

25 at that time?

A.
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1 A. A t that time, no.

2 Q

3

I think you have testified that the effluent

first became available, was that in March of '06?

4 A. I believe that's right.

5 Q. Okay . Do you know prior to you taking the

6

7

company, the golf course over, do you know what rates

were being paid by the prior owner of Johnson Ranch golf

8 course for the CAP water?

9 A. No, I don't.

10 Q. You don't know that? As par t of your due

11 diligence you never asked that question?

12 A. I don't really remember, but I guess the f act

13 that I didn't remember, that I don't remember means that

14 it wasn't important enough at the time relative to the

15 importance that it plays now, you know.

16 What I do remember is that, you know, I -- we

17 checked into whether or not we could get water service

18 and whether or not that would be, you know,

19 uninterrupted, and whether or not we would have the

20 right to effluent when it was delivered. And we were

21 car mainly assured that the rates were tariffed. And so,

22 you know, what rate we got wasn't really a matter of

23 debate or negotiation. It was dictated by the

24 government, essentially.

25 Q. So your recollection on this issue was that the
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1 previous owner was paying a tariffed rate, whatever that

2 was?

3 I assume so. I mean that's the local thing.

4 But to be very frank, I don't recall having a

5 conversation with the owner about what rate do you pay

6 today .

7 Q. Okay . Now, when you took over the golf course

8 you indicated, I think you testified that you were

9 receiving CAP water also?

10 A. Yes.

11 Q. Do you recall what rate you were paying at that

12 time for the CAP?

13 A. I don't recall what no, I do not recall what

14 rate I was paying out at that time

15 Q. Okay .

16

Do you know whether the rate you were

paying was the tariff rate?

17 A. S o no, I don't recall if the rate I was

18 paying was the tariffed rate.

19 Do you know when the golf course at Johnson

Ranch was built?

Q.

20

21 A. I think it was built in 1998.

22 Q. I98 ?

23 I think that's when it -- either the end of '97

24 or '98 it became operational.

25 Do you know if the prior owner of the golf

A .

A .
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1 course ever contested the rate that was charged to them

2 by Johnson Utilities?

3 A. I don't know if they did.

4 Q. Do you know whether the prior owner of the golf

5

6

course ever filed a complaint or raised any objection to

their rates being charged by Johnson Utilities related

7 to the CAP?

8 A . I don't know.

9 Q. I want to go briefly -- and I am almost done,

10 your Honor -- to your revised direct testimony.

ALJ WOLFE: That's Exhibit SF-38.

12 MR. IVIETLI: Yes it is SF-38.I

13 BY MR. METLI :

14 Q. Do you have that, Mr. Ashton? Are you there I

15 sir?

16 A. I have it now.

17 Q. Oh, okay. Line 2 4 the last sentence and i tI I

18

19

extends into the next page, page 4, it says we should be

receiving as much effluent as the utility can deliver up

20 to our requirements. And then you go on to say this is

21 in accordance with our rights as a tariffed effluent

22 customer. Do you see that, sir?

23 A. No.

24 Q N o , no.

You said page 4, line 24?

Star ting on page 3, line 24.

25 A. Okay . I see i t now.
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1 Q Okay . The last sentence

2 A. Yes.

3 Q. beginning with you should be receiving, and

4 extending to the following

5 A. Yes.

6 Q. Okay?

7 A. Yes.

8 Q

9

In a scenario, sir, where let's say the demand

for your effluent exceeds the supply of effluent

10 available from the utility company, okay, well, what

11

12

that means, and you can correct me, are you saying that

it is your position that regarding how the effluent

13 should be allocated you have the first right to that

14 effluent?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. Okay . And why is that?

17 A.

18

well, the first right to effluent is defined in

a contract that was originally executed between the

19

20

prior owner of the Johnson Ranch course and the utility

that was then treated from the beginning of my ownership

21 i n the course a s a valid contract between us, between us

22 and the utility, that stated in that contract that we

23

24

would have the right to the first effluent generated by

utility up to an amount that enabled us to irrigate the

25 golf course and that utility had the right to deliver
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1 that effluent elsewhere if they wanted but that they

2 would continue to charge us the effluent rate for that

3 water even if it was CAP.

4 Q.

5

Well, and I guess what had confused me was your,

was your statement this is an accordance with our rights

6 a s a tariffed effluent customer.

7

Are you basing that

opinion on a contract, or are you basing that opinion on

8

9

the f act that you are a tariffed customer?

I am basing it on the way we did business withA.

10 the utility from the beginning and based on the contract

11

12

that we had between us, as well as, you know, rights as

a tariffed effluent customer, that they would deliver

13 effluent to us rather than sending it to some other

14 source, such as not delivering it at all to a user.

15 Q. So that understanding, sir, is based on the idea

16 that you have a contract with Johnson Utilities as

17 opposed to what your legal rights would have been just

18 as a tariffed customer?

19 A. Yes . There is a difference, yes.

20 Q. Okay . So as a tariffed customer are you

21 f familiar with any rule that would give priority to one

22 effluent customer over another, if you know?

23 A. no. As a tariffed effluent customer, no, I am

24 not aware of that.

25 Q. Just a final inquiry. I just want to go back to
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1 an exhibit we marked as you spoke about today, which was

2 SF-28 l

3 ALJ WOLFE: That has been admitted.

4 THE WITNESS: Okay, I have it.

5 BY MR. METLI :

6 Q. And I think you testified that the utility

7 company did not shut off your effluent and it caused

8 your lake to overflow, is that correct?

9 A. Yes.

10 Q. Now, did that -- that occurrence that occurred

11 over the weekend, was that over a Saturday, Sunday?

12 A. Well, it took a few days to actually overflow

13 the lake . But the photographs were, I believe, taken on

14 that Saturday per my testimony. So the overflow was

15

16 Q. Okay .

17

certainly in the process of occurring on that date.

And I am looking at page, it is actually

entitled -- the second page, but it is page 20.

18 an e-mail from you to December Davis.

19 A. Yes.

20 Q. Do you see that? And it is dated Monday,

21 February 4th. Do you see that?

22 A. Yes.

23 Q. What this e-mail is saying is that you have

24 asked for the utility company to stop the water?

25 A. Yes.
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1 Q. Why was that request made on the following

2 Monday, February 4th?

3 A. Well, once the lake, once the f airway

4 was -- okay. So to answer your question directly, we

5

6

7

made a number of requests to the utility by phone, first

by our agronomy manager and then, too, by my manager, to

stop delivering water. And those requests were ignored.

8

9

And so at that point: my manager came to me and

said they have not turned off this water despite our

10

11

repeated requests, and can you do something about it.

And at that point, because I was aware based on

12 Mr. Larsen's statements that he would not speak to me I

13

14

that I was supposed to go to Ms. Davis, I then sent her

a formal e-mail saying please turn off the water. A s

15

16

you can imagine, Ms. Davis normally had nothing to do

with turning off water, but I had been forced to go to

17 her because Mr. Larsen was not allowed to speak to me I

18 even though he runs the utility.

19 Q. Well, sir, you indicate you made a number of

20 requests by phone. Why doesn't your Monday,

21

22

February 4th, 2008 e-mail reflect the f act that you had

been trying to contact the utility company to get the

23 water shut off?

24 A. I really can't answer that, Mr. Metli. I mean

25 as you could imagine, I wouldn't send an e-mail to the
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1

2

CFO of the company who has never once seen the Johnson

Ranch golf course if I could have just gotten the

3 response I needed from the man who actually managed it.

4 But since I was not getting that response, I was forced

5

6 Q. Okay .

7

to go to her, based on the request of my manager.

So you agree with me that referencing any

phone calls to the utility is not reflected in your

8 notice dated Monday, February 4th?

9 A. That's correct.

10 MR. IVIETLI : I have nothing fur thee, Your Honor.

11 ALJ WOLFE: Good at ternoon, Mr. Ashton.

12 MR. IVIETLI: I am sorry, Your Honor, I forgot to

13 move A-19, I apologize.

14 ALJ WOLFE: Okay . Thank you. Is there any

15 objection to A-19?

16 MS. MITCHELL: No.

17 MR I MARKS : No objection.

A-19 is admitted.18 ALJ WOLFE:

19 (Exhibit No. A-19 was admitted into evidence.)

20

21 FURTHER EXAMINATION

22 BY ALJ WOLFE :

23 Q Mr. Ashton, you testified that you sent a

24 written notice that you decided to stop managing the

25 Oasis golf course. Why did you decide to stop managing
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1

2

the Oasis golf course?

The relationship between MrA . Johnson and my

3 organization was not positive I and in an effort to

4 improve that, I hired or I went to hire a person or I

5 recruited a person to manage the course for him but

6 I found this

7

working for us by the name of Tom Wire.

person who I felt was qualified to do an excellent job

8 managing the course with the hope that that would

9 improve the relationship.

10 When I introduced him at the office -- before I

11 hired him, because I wanted Mr. Johnson's approval, I

12 took him to Mr. Johnson's office, and we had a meeting

13 between himself, Mr. wire, Mr. Johnson, Mr. Tompsett I

14 and the four of us .me, Mr. Johnson knew at that time

15 that I was going to hire this person if he approved.

And after he met with Mr. Wire, he had Mr. Wire leave16

17 the room and Mr. Johnson told me I am going to hire him

18

19

myself, he is going to become my employee.

And at that time I can honestly say that I was

20 afraid of Mr. Johnson, and I wanted to keep positive

21 relations with him if I could. So my response was

22

23

Mr. Johnson, George, I accept that, but if you hire him

directly, then I am not going to add any value to this

24

25

relationship, and in good conscience I cannot accept

water credit anymore if I don't -- if he is not my
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1

2

employee and I am not managing him; if you are managing

him, then what value am I adding, I can't accept water

3 credit for that.

4 And his response was it is okay, let;'s deal with

5

6

the next couple, let's deal with the next couple months,

we will work through the problems we have been having in

7 this relationship. And I said okay. I think it was

8 around September of '06. So my -- we continued to,

9 quote-unquote, manage the course.

10 But I found that once Tom got in place and I

11

12

kind of got him trained and my employees worked with him

to make sure h e was comfortable with, you know, the

13 point of sale system, for example, that we had installed

14 a few months earlier for the Oasis stuff like thatI I

15 that he didn't need us.

16 was being paid directly by him

And he reported to Mr. Johnson,

And the relationship

17 was not getting better.

18 So I sent an e-mail to Mr. Tompsett, because

19 Mr. Johnson does not use e-mail. And I sent this in

20 writing because I wanted to make sure that they would

21 know that I was -- you know, you have verbal

22

23 So I sent a

24

conversations, people don't know, you know, later they

don't remember exactly what was said.

verbal formal resignation essentially of this

25 relationship, saying we are not adding any value, in
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1

2

good conscience I can no longer accept a water credit

from you so I am going to resign from this process; if

3 you have a problem with that, let me know. And I never

4 And shortly of tee that, we began to

5

got a response.

have billing problems I very, very severe billing

6 problems with the course I within a couple months, I

7 think ¢

8 ALJ WOLFE: Thank you.

9 Do you have redirect for this witness I

10 Mr. Marks?

11 MR I MARKS : I do have just a few things, Your

12 Honor.

13

14 REDIRECT EXAMINATION

15 BY MR. MARKS :

16 Q. Hello again, Mr. Ashton.

17 A. Hi Mr. Marks.I

18 Q. What time is it now in France?

19 A. It is 11:30, it is almost midnight.

20 Q. Thank you for bearing with us today.

21 You were asked some questions by Mr.

22 about lying,

Pozefsky

and I believe you admitted to him and also

23 to Mr. Melli that you have lied to Mr. Larsen on

24 February let, 2008. Do you remember that?

25 A. I remember Mr. Pozefsky' s question and my
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response, yes.

2 Q Do you in your mind see any distinction between

3

4

the lie you told to Mr. Larsen and the lies that you

believe that you were told by Johnson Utilities?

5 A. Sure . You know, there is a difference of

6 intent . There are two things here. So there is a

7 difference in intent between people who tell lies to

8

9

cover up the truth and their behavior versus people

that, let's say, tell lies to try and make sure that the

10 truth comes out. That's the first issue.

11 The second is when I was speaking to Mr. Larsen,

12 I wasn't lying to him in the sense that, you know, I

13 wanted to take advantage of him or that I had no intent

14 to do what I said. I had every intent to do what I

15 said.

16

17

But at tee that meeting ended, circumstances very

quickly became such, with flooding and all this ser t of

thing, that it was not really feasible for me to execute

18 o n the commitments that I had made to him.

19 I think I have demonstrated that, at frankly

20 great cost, I did everything I could to avoid in the end

21 doing something that would cause me to then have lied to

22 Mr. Larsen. I didn't want to do that. But

23 unfortunately, given the utility's actions over the

24 course of a long period, I felt like I didn't really

25 have a choice.
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1 Q. But you did in f act lie to him when you said

2 that you weren't recording him, correct?

3 A. Yes, I did, yes.

4 Q. And of the two types of lies that you described,

5 what type of lie would that be?

6 That was a lie designed to get the truth, yes.

7 Q Thank you.

8 Mr. Metli went through your college background,

9 your undergraduate and graduate courses. And I know

10 this is in your testimony, as was much of what he asked

11 you, but just so the record is clear today, where did

12 you do your undergraduate work?

13 A. BYU n

14 Q And you graduated from -- that's Brigham Young

15 University?

16 A. Yes.

17 Q. And where did you go to graduate school?

18 A. Stanford .

19 Q. And what kind of degree did you get from there?

20 A. I have an MBA.

21 Q. Master's in business administration?

22 A. That's right.

23 Q

24

Thank you.

Do you have a copy up there, Mr. Ashton, of

25 Exhibit SF-22?

A.
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1 Yes. I saw it a minute ago.

2 And looking at the first page of Exhibit SF-22 I

3 could you read the par t (b) , the question that you were

4 asked and then your answer.

5 A. Please provide copies of all Johnson Utilities'

6 Response I

7

bills in the possession of Swing First Golf.

I have attached copies of additional bills that we have

8 located.

9 Q. And how did you locate those bills?

10 A. I went, we went well there is a lot of them.I

11 So I went back to my manager and asked him for, for all

12 the bills that he had on file and could find

13 Q. And he went through and searched the file

14 cabinets and various other things to try and locate

15 anything he could find?

16 A. Yes.

17 Q

18

I would like you to turn to the very next page

And that's a document, I wonder if you could describe

19 that . Just in the upper left-hand corner, we have

20 talked about this document before but there is a BatesI

21 stamp up there that says SF000204. Do you see that?

22 A. Yes .

23 Q. And I wonder if you could describe this

24 document I

25 It is a bill, it is a single bill from the

A.

Q.
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1

2

utility for service in May 2006, for both effluent and

CAP, and with the appropriate account numbers, you know,

3 listed there.

4 Q. What rate does it appear that you were charged

5 for effluent and CAP a t that time?

6 A. If you do the math on this document, I believe

7 it will show that utility charged a rate of 63 cents per

8

9

thousand gallons for both effluent and CAP.

They charged you the same rate for both effluentQ.

10 water and CAP water, i s that correct?

11 A. That's right.

12 Q And this was for service in May of 2006 you

13 state?

14 A. That's what it says on the bill, yes.

15 Q. What did -- I know you testified to this, but

16 just so it is close together in the record, when did you

17 start receiving effluent service?

18 I think it was in March of 2006.

19 Q.

20

So this was very soon at tar you star Ted

receiving effluent service, is that correct?

21 A. That's right.

22 Q

23

Would you accept subject to check that this

actually works out to just slightly more than 64 cents

24 per thousand gallons?

25 A. Yes.

A.
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Q. And the date o f the invoice?

2 A. The 17 th of August 2006.

3 Q. Turning to another subject, Mr. Ashton, we have

4 had, obviously, a lot of testimony about the recording

5 that you made in February, on February let of 2008.

6 When did you first listen to that recording of tee you

7 made it?

8 A. The first time I listened to it was when it was

9 submitted as evidence in April of 2009.

10 Q. Would you have listened to it before it was

11 actually transcribed?

12 A. No. I didn't have it.

13 Q. So you didn't listen to that recording from the

14 time you made it until sometime in April of 2008

15 A. That's correct, o r

16 Q. or 2009?

17 A. 2009 that's correct.I

18 Q. Do you still have Exhibit A-19 up there?

Yes here it is.19 A. Yes I believe so.I I

20 MR | MARKS : Excuse me just a moment, Your Honor.

21 ALJ WOLFE: Yes.

22 BY MR. MARKS :

23 Q. I would like you then again to turn to also, so

24 you have basically two documents to refer to, to

25 Exhibit SF-30.
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1 A. Okay, I have it.

2 And you state in par t -- well, first of allI

3 this is a supplemental response to Johnson Utilities'

4 data request 2.15, correct?

5 A. Yes.

6 Q. And that was previously put into evidence as

7 Exhibit A-19 correct?I

8 A. Yes.

9 Q. Would you read the second sentence of your

10 supplemental response.

11 A. This e-mail was not included in the e-mails

12

13

previously provided by utility in response to Swing

First's data request 1.8.

14 Q.

15

Do you have a copy up there with you of Swing

First's data request 1.8 in the complaint case?

16 A. In A-19?

17 Q. No.

18 A. Oh, yes.

This is separately in a binder up there.

Yes, it is right onIt is right here.

19 this page I have it.

20 Q. First of all, what was the date of data request

21

22

1.8 in the complaint, or in the response to data request

1.8 in the complaint case?

23 A. The date of the response?

24 Q It should be in the letter from Mr. Crockett at

25 the beginning.

ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC I
www.az-reporting.com

Q.

(602) 274-9944

Phoenix, AZ



WS-02987A-08-0180 VOL. v 09/24/2009
661

1 A. September 18 th, 2008.

2 Q. Okay . Now, I wondered if you would read into

3 the record data request 1.8 in the complaint case.

4 A. I

5

For the period of January 2006 to the present

please provide copies of all e-mails from any Johnson

6 Utilities' employee to or from David Ashton or any other

7 This includes but

8

person affiliated with Swing First.

is not limited to copies of e-mails from Brian

9 Tompsett ' s personal account, including recent requests

10

11

by Swing First Golf for Johnson Utilities to cease

flooding the lake at the Golf Club at Johnson Ranch.

12 Q And then do you see the response provided by

13 utility to data request 1.8?

14 A. Yes. Mr. Tompsett ' s response is copies of

15 e-mails responsive to this data request are attached to

16 this response.

17 Q. Now, back t o SF-30, i f you look at the e-mailI

18 this is in the third page from Mr. Larsen, do you see

19 that?

20 A. Yes.

21 Q And what address did that come from?

22 Mr. Larsen's Johnson Utilities work address.

23 Q.

24

Was this e-mail provided, if you know, in

response to data request in the complaint case 1.8?

25 A. no, it was not.
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1 Q Thank you .

2 In response to a question by Mr. Metli earlier,

3 I believe you stated that you made the decision to

4 review the recording and to release the invoice at tee

5

6

you had heard Mr. Tompsett testis y, or when you were

listening in on the internet.

7

Do you remember that?

Yes, I remember saying that.

8 Q. And I want you now t o look a t , we have up there

9 Exhibit A-6.

10 A. Okay . I don't have it yet.

11 Okay .

12 A. Yes I have it.I

13 Q. And what is the date of Exhibit A-6?

14 A. March 23rd, 2009.

15 Q. I would like you t o turn to page 1 3 o f

16 Exhibit A-6 I

17 A. Okay, I am there.

18 Q And a question, I would like you to read into

19

20

the record the question beginning on page 13 and the

answer, beginning of the answer from line 15 through

21 line 17.

22 So question 1s-

and Ms. Davis made such statements to Mr. Ashton?

A. Do you believe that Mr. Larsen

23

24 Mr. Tompsett ' s response is: No. Neither

25 Mr. Larsen nor Ms. Davis told Mr. Ashton that Johnson

A.

Q.
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1

2

3 Specifically

4

Utilities does not follow the law i n the billing

practices o r that Mr. Johnson told them t o conduct

illegal billing practices.

That's fine.Q. In f act, was this the statement

5

6

that prompted you to decide that you were going to

provide the invoice and go back and listen to the

7 recording?

8 A. Yes it was.I

9 Q. So to the extent that you spoke that it was

10

11

prompted by listening to an actual Commission -- or to

his actual live testimony, that would have been -- you

12 would have misspoken then?

13 A. That's correct.

14 Now, you were asked some other questions about

15 Exhibit A-6 I

16

17

Let me get the right page here. Page 11

you were asked a number of questions about the various

bill credits that were allegedly provided. Do you see

18 those? Do you remember those questions?

19 A. Yes, I remember them very well.

20 Q. Now, if you would, briefly -- well, let me just

21 back up

22 When, I know this is in the record, but again,

23

24

when did you file your informal complaint with the

Corporation Commission?

25 A. November 2007.
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1 Q. And when was the 43,358.92 credit allegedly

2 provided?

3 Shortly thereof tee, in December 2007.

4 Q. And when was the $8,382.34 credit provided?

5 A. Shot fly thereof tee, in December 2007.

6 Q. And when was the $45,892.94 credit provided?

7 A. Shortly at tar in December 2007.

8 Q

9

So none of these credits were provided until

you -- until at tee you filed your -- of tee your -- let

10 me back up

11 Your service was cut off for the first time

12 when?

13 A. November, mid November 2007.

14 Q. And then it was cut off for a second time when?

15 A. I think on the 20th of November 2007 but on orI

16

17

around that day.

And that predated the rendering of these threeQ.

18 credits that we just discussed, is that correct?

19 Yes.

20 Q. You had some discussion about the I believe itI

21 is called, the San Tan Heights homeowners association.

22 Do you remember that?

23 A. Yes .

24 Q. Do you remember who you talked to predominantly

25 at that homeowners association?

A.

A.
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1 A. There was - - i t was a woman. I can't remember

2 her name I

3 sure ,

It is, you know, par t of the record, I am

but I could get it if it is imper tent. She worked

4

5

for a third.-par Ty HOA company and was assigned to manage

the processes and the business of the homeowners

6 association for San Tan Heights.

7 MR I MARKS : Thank you . Those are all the

8 questions I have.

9 ALJ WOLFE: Is there any recross on those

10 issues, Mr. Pozefsky?

11 MR. POZEFSKY: Thank you, your Honor. And I

12 just have a few.

13

14 RECROSS-EXAMINATION

15 BY MR. POZEFSKY:

16 Q. Good afternoon, Mr. Ashton. I just want to

17 follow up a few questions that your counsel asked you on

this Exhibit SF-22.18 You know, RUCO really here is

19

20 overfilled.

concerned with whether you and your customers are being

That's really our primary concern from your

21 And I really want to give you a chance to

22

testimony.

talk a little bit about this.

23

24

Before I ask you about this par titular bill, in

response to some questions you were asked by Staff, I

25 get the impression that you now understand what tariff
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1 rates mean, i s that correct?

2 A . Yes.

3 Q. And do you still believe that the company was

4 charged more than the tariffed rates, is that what you

5 are testis Ying to?

Yes it is.6 A. I

7 Q. Okay . And that's in addition to the illegal

8 charging that you claim has been brought on by the

9 company by this Superfund tax, correct?

10 Yes. The Superfund tax is a very small par t of

11

12 Okay . I was looking at the revised direct

13 testimony of Ms. Rowell, at the end, on page 9 of 15 I

14 where she goes through how she wants the Commission

15 deal with what the, with the utility in this rate case.

16 And one of the things that I haven't been able to

17 acer rain from you or from your testimony so f at is to

18 quantify the amount that you believe you had been

19 overfilled.

20

21

22

I am gathering from what I have read here is you

have asked the Commission to give refunds to people or

to at least you for the amounts that you have been

23 overfilled. So in this Exhibit SF-22 I went to theI

24 back and it looks like the last bill here is for the

25 billing date 2/28/09, and the previous balance I see

A.

Q.

ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC I

www.az-reporting.com

(602) 274-9944

Phoenix, AZ



WS-02987A-08-0180 VOL l v 09/24/2009
667

1 there is $93,900.37. Correct?

2 A. Yes.

3

4

And you said presently the amount that is owing

or what the company claims it is owing is somewhat nor th

5 o f that somewhere around o f 100 000I l , i s that correct?

6 A. Yes, somewhere nor Rh of that, yes.

7 Q.

8

Are you claiming that that 93,000 on this

par ticular bill is completely an overbill?

9 A. Yes I, am. I think what is interesting here and

10 worth noting is that that amount due continues to rise

11

12

13

despite the f act that it is not disputed, that since

this dispute began, that the golf course has continued

to pay its bills in full on time all the time. But this

14 amount continues t o rise.

15 Q Okay . So is the amount that the golf course is

16 paying, i s that a n objective amount, subjective amount?

17

18

In other words, is that just a monthly amount and

nothing on the back due that's owing?

19 A. That's right. So we pay what the utility bills

20 We check the bills to make sure that their prior

21 behavior has not been repeated. And then when

22 Mr. Lundgren, who is my manager, has my permission, he

23 pays the bill once he knows from me that the bill is

24 accurate 1

25 Q Okay . Sc going back to this bill, has the

Q.
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1 company paid the amount owing every month from

2 February on up to the present?

3 A. Yes.

4 Q. And so the previous balance, then, what you are

5

6

7

testifying to would be about 6,000 more from what was

owing previously in February of 2009?

Somewhere around that, yes.A. It could be a bit

8 higher. I haven't looked at it because I live f at away.

9 Mr. Lundgren sends me the information and he transcribes

10 it into an Excel sheet and sends it to me. And we don't:

11 even pay attention to this, these bills right here I

12 And so we

13

because they are just -- they are not real.

pay -- he gives me only the information of the current

14 month's usage. And I look at that validate that theI

15

16

proper tariff is being charged, and then I give him

permission to pay the bill.

17 Q. Okay .

18

So if you have been paying every month

since February, do you have any idea what the extra six

19 or seven thousand would be for?

20 A. No . No, absolutely not.

21 Q.

22

Have you ever asked the company how to calculate

the previous balance?

23 A. Like when I make requests to the company over

24 the last two years, they are not responded to You

25 know, I made a request -- they are occasionally
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1 responded to

2

If I push the CFO, she will respond.

But you know, normally things like that, in this

3 situation, the short answer to your question is I tried

4

5 And the response

6

7

many times, many, many months ago to get clarity from

them on why they are charging this.

was not forthcoming, or in my opinion it was completely

So, you know, eventually you stop asking.bogus I

8

9 answer

could ask Mr. Tompsett again and he would give an

Then, you know, w e would have t o decide whether

10 that would be a real answer or not .

11 Q. One last question, Mr. Ashton. Would you be

12 able to provide the Commission with the most current

13 bill listing the most current previous balance?

14 A. If I needed to, sure. If you would like that, I

15

16

would be happy to provide it.

RUCO would request a copy of that.Q.

17 A. How

18

As long as I have your contact information.

do I pass information through this proceeding?

19 ALJ WOLFE: Mr. Marks, can you make sure that

20 that's filed as an exhibit in this proceeding?

21 MR U MARKS : Well, I can, Your Honor. I am just

22

23

24

wondering if it might be more appropriate for the

utility. Since they generate the bills, they will

actually have a copy of it before Mr. Ashton does.

25 Assuming that he receives what they send, we could
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1

2

3

certainly put that in, but perhaps it might be more

appropriate for the utility to put that in as an

exhibit.

4 ALJ WOLFE: Mr. Crockett.

5 MR. CROCKETT: Your Honor, we have -- we can get

6

7

a copy of a current bill, and I think ought to be able

to have it here, I think we can probably have it here

8 tomorrow I

9 Now, would that be an actual copy of

the actual bill that was sent to the customer would

ALJ WOLFE:

10 , or

11 it be one of those that was spoken about in the

12 testimony yesterday?

13 MR I CROCKETT : Well, Your Honor, the company

14

15 customer U

16 goes to the customer.

17

does not keep a photocopy of every bill that goes to the

They don't keep a photocopy of any bill that

So any bill they generate is

going to be generated off the computer system.

18 ALJ WOLFE: I would like to have both par ties

19 file a copy of the most recent bill.

20 MR I MARKS : That sounds like that would be a

21 better idea. So, Mr. Ashton, are you able to contact

22

23

Mr. Lundgren and see if he can get a copy of that to me?

Just to be clear, there is aTHE WITNESS: Yes.

24

25 we receive it.

lag between when the utility generates a bill and when

They also, I believe, send us two bills.

ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC.

www.az-reporting.com

(602) 274-9944

Phoenix, AZ



WS-02987A-08-0180 VOL U v 09/24/2009
671

1 One is -- I am not her rain, but one is the bill for the

2 prior Mont:h's usage and the second, I believe the, is

3 one with this enormous balance o n it.

4

So I will try to

provide a copy of, if there are in f act both, I will try

5 to provide a copy of both of those.

6

7

Try to recognize, if you could, that if the

utility brings the most recent bill, that could be the

8 one, that could be one that we haven't received yet. So

9 I am going to bring the -- I will provide the most

10 recent copy that we have.

11 ALJ WOLFE: Is that sati sf actors, Mr. Pozefsky?

12 MR. POZEFSKY: Your Honor. Thank you .

13 have nothing fur thee.

14 Thank you, Mr. Ashton.

15 THE WITNESS :

16 ALJ WOLFE:

Thank you.

Does Staff have any recross on the

17 redirect?

18 Ms. VOHRA: Your Honor, we d o not . Thank you .

19 ALJ WOLFE: Does the company?

20 MR. METLI: Just one, Your Honor.

21

22 RECROSS - EXAMINATION

23 BY MR. METLI :

24 Q. Mr. Ashton, you were asked by your counsel to

25 look at, I believe it was, Swing First Golf's data
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1 request 1.8. Do you remember that?

2 A. Yes.

3 Q

4

And you had indicated that there was some

concern that in that, in response to that request the

5 utility didn't provide the e-mail from Mr. Larsen to you

6 dated November 21st 2007 correct?I I

7 A. I don't know that I indicated that there was

8 concern, but the answer was yes, the utility did not

9 provide that e-mail.

10 Q. To your knowledge do you know whether Mr. Larsen

11 deleted the e-mail or not?

12 A. That's a good question. I assume actually that

13 he may have, because I think in his testimony or, sorry,

14 in one of the documents he said that he did.

15 Q.

16

Well, I want to direct you actually to page 26

of my exhibit, I believe it is A-18, which was the

17 excerpt I

18 What page?

19 Q. It is page 26. Are you there, sir?

20 I will delete it

21

Talking on line 11 you say:

I will delete it. You need to

22

from my MS system.

delete it from yours.

23 His response is: It is already gone.

24 A. Yes.

25 Q. Would that tend to show that Mr. Larsen had

A.
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1 already deleted that e-mail?

2 A. I t does. I am a sot aware guy It does tend to

3 show that Mr. Larsen deleted the e-mail from his

4 computer.

5 As you can imagine, I think Mr. Tompsett

6 well, I won't: put words in his mouth. Johnson Utilities

7 i s not the most tech savvy organization that I have ever

8 done business with. Their CEO, their owner, does not

9 have an e-mail address. It is very, very possible that

10 that e-mail continues to reside on their servers today.

11 And so that e-mail may or may not have been in the

12 servers of the company when the data request was made.

13 If it was, it was not provided.

14 Q. But it is clear from this exhibit that

15 Mr. Larsen deleted his?

16 A. Yes, according to what he said, yes.

17 MR. METLI : Thank you . I have nothing else.

18 THE WITNESS : Thank you .

19 ALJ WOLFE: Is there anything fur thee,

20 Mr. Marks?

21 MR C MARKS : No, Your Honor. Thank you .

22 ALJ WOLFE: Mr. Pozefsky, you did not move

23 Exhibit R-6. Is it your intention to move it later?

24 You said you had questions for a company witness on it.

25 MR. POZEFSKY: I do, Your Honor.
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1 ALJ WOLFE: So it is not an oversight?

2 MR. POZEFSKY: No, Your Honor.

3 ALJ WOLFE: Thank you for your testimony,

You are excused.4 Mr. Ashton.

5 THE WITNESS : Thank you, Your Honor.

6 ALJ WOLFE: Does the company wish to put

7 Mr. Tompsett on this afternoon?

8 MR. CROCKETT:

9 next .

Mr. Tompsett I think would be up

Mr. Rigs by is going to be out of town tomorrow

10 and the next week.

11 MR. POZEFSKY: Your Honor, we are going to make

12 Mr. Rigs by available tomorrow. I was going to announce

13 that .

14 ALJ WOLFE: I am sorry if that interfered with

15 your vacation.

16 MR. CROCKETT : Your Honor, it might be a little

17 So we can put

18

tight today to get Mr. Rigs by on and off.

Mr. Tompsett back on and resume his if t1'1at ' scross I

19 your preference, or we can break.

20 ALJ WOLFE: We can break for the day if that

21 I think we have all had quite

22

would be your preference.

a bit today.

23 MR I CROCKETT : That would be fine Your Honor.I

24 ALJ WOLFE:

25

So we will recess today until 9:30

tomorrow morning, and we will just star t with Mr. Rigs by
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1 in the morning. And then do you want to do

2 Mr. Tompsett?

3 MR • CROCKETT : Okay, Rigs by first, then

4 Tompsett: .

5 ALJ WOLFE: Yes .

6 MR. CROCKETT : Your Honor, can we leave things

7 in the room today?

8 ALJ WOLFE:

9 documents •

Yes, except for the confidential

We are adjourned for the day.

10 (The hearing recessed at 2:56 p.m.)

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
www.az-reporting.com

(602) 274-9944
Phoenix, AZ



WS-02987A-08-0180 VOL. v 09/24/2009
676

1 STATE OF ARIZONA
s s •

2 COUNTY OF MARICOPA

)
)
)

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

I, COLETTE E. Ross, Car tiffed Reporter

No. 50658 for the State of Arizona, do hereby her tit y

that the foregoing printed pages constitute a full, true

and accurate transcript of the proceedings had in the

foregoing matter, all done to the best of my skill and

ability.

13

14 WITNESS my hand this 28th day of September,

15 2009 ¢

16

17

18

19

20
C14-ecwé 894
COLETTE E . ROSS
Car tiffed Reporter
Cer tificate no. 5065821

22

23

24

25

ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC.

www.az-reporting.com

(602) 274-9944

Phoenix, AZ


